
AB
PETERBOROUGH CITY COUNCIL

SUMMONS TO A MEETING

You are invited to attend a meeting of the Peterborough City Council, which will be held in the 
Council Chamber, Town Hall, Peterborough on 

WEDNESDAY 4 MARCH 2015 at 7.00 pm

AGENDA
Page No.

1. Apologies for Absence

2. Declarations of Interest

3. Minutes of the meeting held on 28 January 2015 3 - 24

COMMUNICATIONS

4. Mayor's Announcements 25 - 26

5. Leader's Announcements

6. Chief Executive's Announcements

PUBLIC PARTICIPATION

7. Questions from Members of the Public

8. Petitions

i) Presented by members of the public
ii) Presented by Members

RECOMMENDATIONS AND REPORTS

9. Executive and Committee Recommendations to Council 27 - 28

(a) Cabinet Recommendation - Peterborough Culture Strategy 2015-
2020

29 - 58

(b) Cabinet Recommendation - Budget 2015/16 and Medium Term 
Financial Strategy 2024/25

SEE 
SEPARATE 

BOOK 2 OF 2

10. Questions on the Executive Decisions made since the last meeting 59 - 64

Public Document Pack



Emergency Evacuation Procedure – Outside Normal Office Hours

In the event of the fire alarm sounding all persons should vacate the building by way of the nearest escape 
route and proceed directly to the assembly point in front of the Cathedral.  The duty Beadle will assume 
overall control during any evacuation, however in the unlikely event the Beadle is unavailable, this 
responsibility will be assumed by the Committee Chair.

For more information about this meeting, including access arrangements and facilities for people with 
disabilities, please contact Gemma George in the City Council's Governance team on Peterborough (01733) 
452268 or by email at democratic.services@peterborough.gov.uk

There is an induction hearing loop system available in all meeting rooms.  Some of the 
systems are infra-red operated, if you wish to use this system then please contact 
Gemma George on 01733 452268.

COUNCIL BUSINESS

11. Questions on notice

i) To the Mayor
ii) To the Leader or member of the Cabinet
iii) To the Chair of any Committee or Sub-Committee

12. Motions on Notice 65 - 66

13. Reports to Council

(a) Peterborough City Council Pay Policy Statement for 2015/16 67 - 78

Chief Executive

24 February 2015
Town Hall
Bridge Street
Peterborough

Recording of Council Meetings: Any member of the public may film, audio-record, take 
photographs and use social media to report the proceedings of any meeting that is open to the 
public. A protocol on this facility is available at: 

http://democracy.peterborough.gov.uk/documents/s21850/Protocol%20on%20the%20use%20of%
20Recording.pdf

%5Cdemapp01
%5Cdemapp01


AB
MINUTES OF COUNCIL MEETING HELD 

28 JANUARY 2015

The Mayor – Councillor David Over
Present:

Councillors Allen, Ash, Brown, Casey, Cereste, Davidson, Day, Elsey, Ferris, 
Fitzgerald, Fletcher, Forbes, Fower, F Fox, JR Fox, JA Fox, Harper, Harrington, 
Herdman, Hiller, Holdich, Iqbal, Jamil, Johnson, Khan, Knowles, Lamb, Lane, Lee, 
Maqbool, Martin, Miners, Murphy, Nadeem, Nawaz, North, Okonkowski, Over, Peach, 
Rush, Saltmarsh, Sanders, Sandford, Scott, Seaton, Serluca, Shaheed, Sharp, 
Shearman, Stokes, Swift, Sylvester, Thacker, Thulbourn and Walsh.

1. Apologies for Absence

Apologies were received from Councillors Arculus and Shabbir.

2. Declarations of Interest

Councillors Khan, Over, Cereste, Holdich, North, Peach, Nadeem and Nawaz 
declared an interest in item 12 ‘Motions on Notice’ in relation to the motion from 
Councillor Richard Ferris, as landlords with properties in Peterborough. 

3. Minutes of the meeting held on 17 December 2014:

The minutes of the Council Meeting held on 17 December 2014 were approved as a 
true and accurate record. 

COMMUNICATIONS 

4. Mayor’s Announcements

Members noted the report outlining the Mayor’s engagements for the period 
commencing 14 December 2014 to 25 January 2015. 

The Mayor further announced the Civic Award winners which recognised residents, 
groups, organisations and business that had made a real different in their local 
community. 

The following nominees had been selected to receive a Civic Award:

 Ted and Shirley Sargeant, Community Involvement Civic Award;
 The Hampton Community Sports Associations, Community Involvement Civic 

Award;
 John Cant, Community Involvement Civic Award;
 Tony Lambert, Community Involvement Civic Award;
 Marlene Stalker, Community Involvement Civic Award;
 Ken Doughty, Community Involvement Civic Award; 
 The First Sensory Legion, Community Involvement Civic Award;
 Brian Pearce, Environment Civic Award;
 Matt Newton, Young Person Civic Award; and 
 The Hampton Community Sports Association, Sports Civic Award;
 Genadijus Skutel, Sports Civic Award;

3



 Mark Theatre, Contribution to Art and Culture Civic Award;
 Diane Goldsmith, Contribution to Art and Culture Civic Award;
 Steponas Bronius Vaitkevicius, Lifetime Achievement Award.

5. Leader’s Announcements

There were no announcements from the Leader. 

6. Chief Executive’s Announcements

There were no announcements from the Chief Executive. 

PUBLIC PARTICIPATION

7. Questions with Notice by Members of the Public 

There were no questions submitted by members of the public. 

8. Petitions 

(a) Presented by members of the public

There were no petitions presented by members of the public. 

(b) Presented by Members

Councillor Davidson presented a petition on behalf of Fulbridge Road Allotment 
Association, containing 387 signatures, the purpose being to obtain the following 
objectives:

1. To obtain assistance from Peterborough City Council in making the fences and 
gates along the access road to the site more secure following a spate of thefts and 
acts of vandalism; and

2. To obtain assistance from Peterborough City Council in making the fencing and 
gate at the rear of the site more secure as it has fallen into disrepair and 
unauthorised access is being gained by intruders.

RECOMMENDATIONS AND REPORTS

9. Executive and Committee Recommendations to Council

(a) Cabinet Recommendation – Local Council Tax Support Scheme

Cabinet at its meeting of 19 January 2015, received a report following consultation on 
the proposals for Council Tax Support for 2015/16 launched by a Cabinet Member 
Decision Notice on 2 December 2014, including discussion at the Joint Budget 
Scrutiny on 3 December 2014.

The purpose of the report was to make a recommendation to Full Council on the 
Council Tax Support Scheme to be implemented in Peterborough from April 2015.

Councillor Seaton introduced the report and moved the recommendations contained 
within.

Councillor Cereste seconded the motion and reserved his right to speak.  

4



Members debated the recommendations and in summary raised points including:

 It was questioned if the level of reduction in benefit for working age claimants 
was proposed to be 30%, why was 40% referenced in the report;

 It was questioned why a £2.4 million spending gap was predicted, if a reduction 
in benefit of 30% was not maintained;

 An increase of the reduction in benefit to 40% would effectively increase 
council tax for those who could least afford it. The last minute change of mind 
was beneficial;

 It was clarified that the 40% detailed in the report was an alternative put 
forward by officers, who had a duty to outline all possible options. It was not a 
proposal of Cabinet; and

 It was noted that the Government had cut the funding for local council tax 
support, subsequently the level of reduction needed to be maintained at 30%. 

Councillor Cereste exercised his right to speak and clarified that it had never been the 
intent of Cabinet to increase the level of reduction in benefit for working age claimants 
beyond 30% and stated that officers had come forward with the right decision for the 
City.

Councillor Seaton summed up as mover of the recommendations and addressed 
several issues raised in debate. The potential £2.4 million spending gap would result 
from not agreeing to maintain a 30% reduction in benefit as the level would 
subsequently default to 0%. Councillor Seaton stated that he was not comfortable with 
many of decisions the Council had to make to cut its budget, however more still had 
to be made.

A vote was taken (unanimous) and it was RESOLVED:

That Council agreed the Local Council Tax Support Scheme for Peterborough and 
that the level of reduction in benefit for working age claimants be kept at 30%.

10.    Questions on the Executive Decisions made since the last meeting

Councillor Cereste introduced the report which detailed executive decisions taken 
since the last meeting, including:

1. Decisions from the Cabinet meeting held on 19 January 2015;
2. Use of the Council’s Call-In mechanism, which had not been invoked since the 

previous meeting;
3. Special Urgency and Waive of Call-In Provisions, which had not been invoked 

since the previous meeting; and
4. Cabinet Member Decisions taken during the period 9 December 2014 to 19 

December 2014.

Questions were asked about the following:

New Delivery Model for Peterborough Library Service
Councillor Miners sought assurance that Councillors of affected wards would be 
included in discussions around the model trial in order to keep communities updated. 
Councillor Serluca agreed that this would be the case.

Councillor Fower questioned the viability of installing new technology in libraries and 
subsequently moving services to the Town Hall. Councillor Serluca was not aware of 
plans to move the service to the Town Hall, however understood that the majority of 
the technology discussed was already in place in the libraries.

5



Councillor Fower asked how the covenant on the City Centre Library affected the 
recommendations. Councillor Serluca advised that she would provide a written 
answer to Councillor Fower.

Councillor Shearman queried why the review was being undertaken by the Council 
and not Vivacity, who ran the library. Councillor Serluca advised that Vivacity delivered 
the library service on the Council’s behalf and Vivacity were working in partnership on 
the consultation process.

The Erection of Barriers at Northminster Multi-Story Car Park
Councillor Murphy questioned why it had taken so long for this matter to be considered 
when the Coroner had issued a regulation 28 notice in July 2014 and queried whether 
it was appropriate to defer a decision to erect barriers at the car park for any length of 
time. Councillor Seaton advised that it had been agreed with the Coroner to monitor 
the situation for six months, as Northminster Car Park had not previously experienced 
such issues as Queensgate.

Creation of a Peterborough Domestic Energy Supply Tariff
Councillor Harrington queried how the new tariff would run with the already 
established scheme. Councillor North advised that OVO Energy Limited would help 
produce a tailor made tariff for the residents of Peterborough. Residents would be 
able to opt in or opt out.

Strategic Partnership between Peterborough City Council and AVIC International 
Corporation (UK) Ltd
Councillor Murphy queried why the agreement to enter into a memorandum of 
understanding (MOU) had not been advertised on the Forward Plan nor gone through 
Scrutiny. The ethical implications of entering into business with a company owned by 
the Chinese Government were also questioned. Councillor Seaton advised that China 
was not the only County that the Council dealt with.

Councillor Ferris queried whether any other companies had been invited to enter into 
a MOU. Councillor Cereste advised that this was a good opportunity for Peterborough. 
The best way for such companies to learn the correct way to undertake business was 
to work with them. A MOU was an agreement to enter into discussions, which would 
then enable a move to contract. At that point, the policies of the Council would be 
followed.

Councillor Harrington questioned why the topic had never been brought up at a Group 
Leaders Meeting. Councillor Cereste indicated that this was the earliest point of 
discussion, as a MOU was an agreement to discuss possible future options. Group 
Leaders had been given an opportunity to receive a briefing, however had declined.

Councillor Knowles asked whether other alternatives could be investigated. Councillor 
Cereste stated that if an opportunity arose from the MOU, processes would be 
followed and everyone would have an opportunity to put across their views.

Councillor Sandford queried the fact that the Council did not have an Ethical Policy 
and whether this was acceptable. Councillor Seaton advised that the Council did not 
have a policy that this agreement would be in contravention of. If there was a desire 
to add something to the constitution regarding ethics than that could be taken up with 
the Constitutional Review Group.

Councillor Fitzgerald sought clarification on whether the Council would listen to any 
organisation which approached them with an investment proposal. Councillor Cereste 
affirmed this and stated that that was the purpose of an MOU.

6



DEC14/CMDN/110 Progressing Funding for Peterborough’s Future Growth
Councillor Saltmarsh queried what a loan note was. Councillor Seaton explained that 
it was another way of borrowing money. He was happy to provide a more detailed 
explanation in writing.

DEC14/CMDN/111 Residential and Nursing Care Contracts
Councillor Murphy queried whether it was correct that there had been backdated 
payments of approximately £150,000 to private nursing care providers and if so, why. 
Councillor Fitzgerald advised that Councillor Murphy was correct, although it was 
noted that the figure had not been increased for five years. The payments were 
backdated because discussions had started several months before an agreement had 
been reached.   

COUNCIL BUSINESS

11.    Questions on Notice

(a) To the Mayor
(b) To the Leader or Member of the Cabinet
(c) To the Chair of any Committee or Sub-Committee

Questions (b) to the Leader or Member of the Cabinet were raised and taken as read 
in respect of the following:

1. The lighting in the underpass at Dukesmead, Werrington;
2. The amount of funding received directly by the council for the provision of adult 

social care;
3. The Schedule for the Brown Bin collection in December and January;
4. The lighting on the Multi Use Games Area on Mountsteven Avenue recreation 

ground;
5. The financial cost to the Council in making sure enough school places are 

available locally;
6. The Trustees of the Green Backyard and their bid to buy the site; and
7. The money paid by the Council in landfill tax per tonne and the amount of garden 

waste placed in black bins.

The following questions were submitted, but due to the time limit being reached for 
the item, the responses were to be circulated in writing:

8. Timeline for repair of faulty street lighting;
9. Damaged bollards;
10. Road resurfacing works and LED lighting in Werrington and beyond;
11. Suicide prevention at Northminster;
12. Sure Start claw back and the Veranda Centre;
13. Street light PCC 10 in Carron Drive, Werrington;
14. Follow up on motions at Full Council;
15. Cost of the new financial system; and
16. Parking on front curtilages with dropped kerbs. 

A summary of all questions and answers raised within agenda item 11 are attached 
at APPENDIX A to these minutes. 

7



12. Motions on Notice

1.   Motion from Councillor Richard Ferris

The Council note previous debates at Full Council and work that has been undertaken 
on selective licensing schemes in Peterborough. We believe that a city-wide licensing 
scheme for privately-rented dwellings would:

 provide increased protection for tenants;
 ensure improvements to the standard of accommodation;
 support effective enforcement, and
 offer responsible landlords an accreditation standard

 
Council asks the Cabinet and relevant officers to prepare a report on the feasibility of 
introducing a city wide scheme for licensing of landlords of privately rented dwellings 
and submit it to a meeting of the Strong & Supportive Scrutiny Committee not later 
than October 2015 and prior to any decision by Cabinet.

Councillor Lee declared an interest in the following item, as a landlord with property 
in Peterborough. 

Councillor Ferris advised that an amendment had been proposed from Councillor 
Fower and he was agreeable for this to be incorporated into his motion. This was 
agreed by Council. 

Councillor Ferris introduced and moved his motion.

Councillor Thulbourn seconded the motion and reserved his right to speak. 

Members debated the motion and in summary raised points including:

 There was a huge difference between a landlord accreditation scheme and 
selective licensing. Good landlords should not be penalised;  

 To introduce a selective licensing scheme, evidence would need to be 
produced, of which there was none;

 Work could be done with substandard landlords and tenants, though a city 
wide scheme could not be implemented. Other options were more appropriate;

 It was questioned whether there was a pilot scheme already being discussed 
and whether a report should be taken to Scrutiny to examine the feasibility of 
a city wide scheme;

 A city wide agreement was not legal or technically possible. Dialogue was 
ongoing regarding particular schemes for particular troubled areas;

 It was recognised that the secretary of state would be monitoring any selective 
licensing scheme; 

 It was suggested that selective licencing did not work, following several cities 
that had abandoned such schemes;

 Programmes such as Operation Pheasant were being used to assist in the 
identification of substandard landlords;

 Pilot schemes were often undertaken in the east of the city. It was suggested 
that a pilot be carried out in the west of the city and then extended to the whole 
city; and

 It was advised that the Council has all the powers it needed to assist suffering 
tenants if it was made aware of them.

8



The Legal Officer advised that motion was accepted as lawful. The Council had the 
power to agree a selective licensing scheme, if it was considered to meet the relevant 
criteria. Members of the Cabinet had previously debated this issue and concluded that 
the criteria was not met. It was acceptable for Council to ask Cabinet to review its 
earlier decision. 

Councillor Thulbourn exercised his right to speak and stated there were substandard 
landlords through the city who were negatively affecting the good landlords. It was 
suggested that the good landlords in the city would support this scheme. 

Councillor Ferris summed up as mover of the motion and advised that the legal 
reasons for restricting a city wide scheme were appreciated. It was believed that the 
proposal would have a positive effect on rent levels and capital values. The motion 
was intended to move the debate on the matter forward without being prescriptive.

A vote was taken (20 for, 32 against, 2 abstentions) and the motion was DEFEATED.

2.   Motion from Councillor John Fox

Members know of the great value to Peterborough communities that Special 
Constables give to policing and the role they play as unpaid volunteers within their 
respective communities.

We also acknowledge that Special Constables have full Police Powers, unlike 
PCSO’s, and are therefore in our opinion more effective as front line Police Officers.

I respectfully ask that this Council write to our two Members of Parliament asking for 
them to look into the feasibility of paying a retainer fee to Special Constables, so as 
to help encourage more volunteers to come forward.

The retainer fee could be paid on an annual basis as a result of fixed hour’s attendance 
per annum, such as the Volunteer Fire Brigade and the Reserve Forces.

We believe that this would help encourage more citizens to come forward and 
volunteer their services, especially in the rural areas where we are seeing less and 
less of a Police presence.

Councillor John Fox introduced and moved his motion.

Councillor Lane seconded the motion and reserved his right to speak. 

Members debated the motion and in summary raised points including:

 It was suggested that Special Constables be able to take time off in order to 
undertake their duties without having to take it out of their annual holiday 
allowance;

 There were alternatives methods of providing a safer Peterborough. The 
funding of the proposals could be considered detrimental to tax payers;

 It was stated that there had been a rise in violent crime in urban areas. The 
addition of a retainer for Special Constables would take away resources for 
urban areas where it was needed;

 Issues in relation to the police should be taken to the Police Crime Panel;
 Special Constables had the full powers of a Police Constable;
 It was suggested that a problem could arise if Special Constables were funded 

by specific parishes and then drawn to other areas in times of need;
 It was suggested that Special Constables did not do the job of Police Officers 

and were equivalent to volunteers. As such, a retainer was not necessary; and

9



 The funding would come from the Police and Crime Commissioner.

Councillor Lane exercised his right to speak and expressed his disappointment at the 
opposition raised. He advised that the proposal was not restricted to rural areas, but 
for all communities.

Councillor John Fox summed up as mover of the motion. He clarified that the motion 
was to look at the feasibility of payer a retainer to Special Constables only. It was 
suggested that a retainer may encourage more Special Constables and assist in 
regulating the hours worked. Councillor John Fox further advised that the proposal 
would improve links between the police and Communities. 

A vote was taken (37 for, 5 against, 11 abstentions) and the motion was CARRIED.

3. Motion from Councillor Ed Murphy

That:

1. Peterborough Council notes the recent A&E crisis at Peterborough City Hospital 
and elsewhere in England, and reports that there were 40 patients with no 
pressing medical needs awaiting discharge taking up beds at the Peterborough 
hospital;

2. The Council believes that the private sector provision of nursing home, social care 
and community care in Peterborough is not adequate enough to deal with the 
current crises. Council believes that a long-term solution involving the public 
sector with the development of a national care service and integrated NHS 
strategy should be pursued; and

3. Members instruct the Council to review the situation and consider direct provision 
of care places in response to the current crisis and we call on the NHS as a matter 
of urgency to tackle the current shortage of nursing care places. Longer and 
medium-term solutions such as employing home helps and providing better 
preventative services should also be implemented so less elderly people in 
particular present at A and E because their needs will have been addressed at an 
earlier stage.

Councillor Murphy introduced and moved his motion.

Councillor Jamil seconded the motion and reserved his right to speak.  

Members debated the motion and in summary raised points including:

 The motion was thought to be contradictory. Problems with bed blocking at the 
hospital was not the responsibility of the Council;

 The Council was already taking an active role in providing extra capacity of 
nursing care beds;

 Better Care Fund integration work was already underway. £120,000 in funding 
would be received from the Government in April;

 It was considered that the proposals looked backwards and were not 
sufficiently innovative. The bed blocking was caused by a number of issues 
that required inventive solutions;

 It was suggested that the Health and Wellbeing Board could consider various 
schemes and consider what would be best for Peterborough;

 It was noted that the issues had resulted from a fundamental structural 
problem with the NHS. There were insufficient numbers of doctors and nurses 
in the country. It was suggested that the focus of discussion should be on 

10



providing more resources for primary care services;
 A claim was made that significant number of individuals were barred from 

becoming nurses because certain level of qualification was required; and
 It was stated that the NHS was stretched as a result of its own success.

Councillor Jamil exercised his right to speak and stated that the Council needed to 
look at the current problems being faced. It was explained that the motion sought to 
find ways to review the current situation.

Councillor Murphy summed up as mover of the motion and advised that it was not 
specified that the Council was the cause of the recent A&E crisis. It was explained 
that the motion asked the Council to request the NHS to take the lead and the Council 
was asked to support this stance.  

A vote was taken (23 for, 27 against, 3 abstentions) and the motion was DEFEATED.

13. Reports to Council

(a)       Review of Polling Districts, Places and Stations

Council received a report which outlined the compulsory requirement in conducting a 
statutory review of polling stations and recommended that Council approved the 
Returning Officer’s proposals in relation to polling districts, places and stations.

Councillor North introduced the report and moved the recommendation contained 
within. He stated that the proposals had been published in October 2014 and 
consultation had ended in November 2014. If the recommendations were agreed, the 
register of electors would be amended accordingly by 31 January 2015. This was 
seconded by Councillor Holdich who reserved his right to speak.

Members debated the motion and it was stated that the Disability Forum had not been 
consulted. It was further requested that officers ensured that the Disability Forum was 
consulted next time such a review was undertaken.

A vote was taken (unanimous) and it was RESOLVED:

i) That the Council noted the compulsory requirement in conducting a statutory 
review of polling stations; and 

ii) That the Council approved the Returning Officer’s proposals in relation to the 
polling districts, places and stations. 

(b)       Senior Management Restructure – Phase 2

Council received a report which notified of the changes the Chief Executive intended 
to make to the senior management structure. The report also sought the approval of 
the Council for the salary range for the new post of Corporate Director: People and 
Communities, which the Chief Executive proposed to establish under the restructure.

In accordance with the Council’s Pay Policy and Guidance issued under section 40 of 
the Localism Act 2011, the Council was required to approve any proposed salaries of 
£100k or more. 

The Legal Officer advised that previously Employment Committee had appointed to a 
position and then had sought Council’s approval for the level of pay. For practical 
reasons it was now the case that Council’s approval was sought for the relevant pay 
band prior to any appointment to post. This was in line with Council policy.

11



Councillor Nadeem introduced the report and moved the recommendation contained 
within. He explained the new roles that had been created within the restructure and 
advised of the proposed pay bands for each role. Three director roles had been 
deleted, saving £300.000. This was seconded by Councillor Holdich who reserved his 
right to speak.

Members debated the motion and in summary raised points including:

 The second phase of the senior manager restructure had been carried out in 
an open and consultative manner;

 Concern was raised regarding the use of market supplements and whether this 
could take any successful candidate outside any pay band approved by 
Council;

 It was suggested that Council needed to see the whole pay package before it 
was offered to a successful candidate;

 It was advised that Employment Committee would only decide where a 
candidate would be positioned within a pay band;

 Reservations were expressed about the ambiguity of the current Council 
policy. It was suggested that when it came back to Council in March, 
clarification could be given in relation to pay bands and specific salary;

 The new structure would be monitored to ensure that it delivered what was 
expected;

 It was noted that it was sad to see officers losing their jobs and that the time 
table for recruitment was very tight, which could be improved; and

 Consideration was given to the process of seeking Council approval for the 
relevant pay band before appointed and it was suggested that this was the 
most sensible approach.

Councillor Holdich exercised his right to speak and advised that this approach was 
more appropriate than appointing an individual to post, who may accept, but whose 
pay level may subsequently be rejected by Council.
 
Councillor Nadeem summed up as mover of the motion and advised that the 
restructure would deliver the right format to attract the best officers in a competitive 
environment.

A vote was taken (36 for, 6 against, 10 abstentions) and it was RESOLVED that 
Council:

i) Noted the changes which the Chief Executive intended to make to the senior 
management structure of the Council; 

ii) Noted the proposal from the Chief Executive that she intended to establish a 
new post of Corporate Director: People and Communities; and 

iii) Approved the proposed salary range for the Corporate Director: People and 
Communities of £127,014 to £155,250. 

The Mayor
7.00pm – 10:25pm

12



APPENDIX A

FULL COUNCIL 28 JANUARY 2015

QUESTIONS & ANSWERS

Questions were received under the following categories:

PUBLIC PARTICIPATION

There were no questions received. 

COUNCIL BUSINESS

11. Questions on notice to:

a) The Mayor
b) To the Leader or Member of the Cabinet
c) To the chair of any Committee or Sub-committee

1. Question from Councillor Davidson

To Councillor Hiller, Cabinet Member for Planning and Housing Services

Would the relevant Cabinet Member please confirm as to when the lighting in the 
underpass at Dukesmead, Werrington will be upgraded. These lights have been in 
operation since the 1970's and residents living locally to the underpass have raised 
concerns that the current lighting provision is inadequate.

Councillor Hiller responded:

Dukesmead underpass has been scheduled for lighting replacement before the end of 
the financial year. There is an active programme for 5 underpasses in the city and 
Dukesmead is to be addressed after work at Nabs Lane, which has no lighting currently 
due to vandalism. I’m told there has been a number of emails received regarding this 
matter generally, and I’m told our officers have been keeping interested parties 
regularly updated. If you’re not being updated Councillor Davidson would you please 
let me know and I’ll make sure that happens. I’m also told as a matter of record that 
your fellow Councillor, Councillor Thacker, has had these cleaned only last year.

Councillor Davidson asked the following supplementary question:

I am in the loop of receiving emails, but in respect of the underpass, I wonder if it 
possible if we could see an introduction of CCTV to be introduced to minimise 
vandalism and also by the introduction of CCTV you would be able to collate any 
evidence enabling enforcement teams to prosecute when vandalism is taking place. 
That said, the underpass lighting system would greatly benefit from an upgrade to a 
more efficient lighting system such as LED and this would provide minimal energy 
costs resulting in less maintenance, high visibility, optimising lighting conditions which 
would provide greater visibility and safety for old age pensioners and children and 

13



those other people who use the underpass. 

Councillor Hiller responded:

Dukesmead underpass has been scheduled for lighting replacement before the end of 
the year. The actual specification of that lighting I’m unsure I will certainly check that it 
is the most efficient lighting systems that we have available, always subject to cost of 
course, but the ongoing costs, the invest to save in low energy LED but high brightness 
LED has got to be looked at very seriously.

Regarding CCTV installation, I would suggest that any CCTV installation has to be 
evidentially based. I can certainly enquire and we can get a costing and I can ask our 
officers to see whether in fact it would be warranted. 

2. Question from Councillor Murphy

To Councillor Fitzgerald, Cabinet Member for Adult Social Care

Could the Cabinet member for Adult Social Care please confirm the amount of funding 
received directly by Peterborough City Council for the provision of adult social care, for 
how many people this applies and could he also give details of the total amount 
expended on direct provision and the total payments to residents to purchase their own 
care?

Councillor Fitzgerald responded:

All these figures relate to the 2014/15 year. 

The gross budget for Adult social care is £59,333,030 and we receive on top of that an 
income of £14,790,718, giving a net figure of £44,542,312. 

The Council has received funding that makes up that amount of £14,790,718 of Better 
Care Fund £661,000, Care Act £125,000, S75 Agreements £2,110,000, S256 
Agreements £3,827,000 and local reform grant of £143,432. 

The second part of your question was the amount spent on direct provision and that 
was £35,977,867 netted down after income received in terms of fees and charges that 
would be £26,814,746 and those in regard to direct payments, there are 512 of those 
and the figures are £8,142,364 netted down to £7,104,666 after income. 

Councillor Murphy asked the following supplementary question:

The BBC have been running the story today and I’m asking if you are aware of it, and 
I think it clarifies some of the issues around this question. Today the research indicates 
that payments for social care for people over 65 in England have fallen by 20%. Is that 
the case in Peterborough, and in Peterborough, have we been getting money 
earmarked for Adult Social Care which have not been passed on to Adult Social Care 
but using it for other things?

Councillor Fitzgerald responded:

To answer that question in the limited time we have here is somewhat difficult, but what 
I would reiterate is I am happy to hold a briefing session with the Director of Adult 
Social Care and with our Director of Commissioning where we can go through the 
numbers in real terms because for me to try and explain this now would be difficult in 
the time we have. I am aware of the figures and we can talk about figures and I think it 

14



is a disgrace that Governments of allsorts are not addressing this issue. 

In real terms since 2003 there has been a 6% decrease in social care funding and a 
17% increase in the number of service users, so at some point something has got to 
give, and we’ve seen some of that giving perhaps arising in the health sector. Until the 
Government decide and provide a solution to this we are going to have to make the 
best of a bad job. I personally would like to see a totally integrated health and social 
care system. I am happy to give a briefing on all the numbers.

In 2012/13 we were spending £144,000,000 on 3,014 people £47,044,500 latterly. 

3. Question from Councillor Sylvester

To Councillor Elsey, Cabinet Member for Street Scene, Waste Management and 
Communications

Does the Cabinet Member responsible for garden waste realise that the lack of Brown 
Bin collection in December and January means that a full six weeks is wasted during 
the time allowed under the Wildlife and Countryside Act for people to trim their garden 
hedges and trees?  Many people reluctantly pay for this collection due to lack of their 
own transport.

Please can this be brought to the attention of the contractor as it is noted that the 
contractor abides by the Wildlife and Countryside Act when carrying out public work on 
behalf of the Council.  

Please can the Cabinet Member point out that normal collection of Brown Bins during 
December and January should entail no extra cost to householders bearing in mind 
the cost of collecting fly tipped garden waste as a consequence of non-collection.

Councillor Elsey responded:

The new paid-for brown bin service does provide for a collection in both December and 
January, as well as a fortnightly service throughout the rest of the year, so I am not 
sure how there is a lack of service in these months. 

Previously, this would have been correct as we had suspended the garden waste 
service for three months.

The monthly, as opposed to fortnightly, service in December and January reflects the 
very significant reduced tonnages of garden waste that were presented in this period 
previously.

Specifically relating to missing six weeks of the Wildlife and Country Act, all residents 
still have the option to cut their shrubs and trees in that period and can store it because 
we do make a collection, equally they can also take their garden waste to the 
household recycling centre so I’m not sure how we are preventing the service. 

Councillor Sylvester asked the following supplementary question: 

Do you realise that in mid-January and February that the weather is so poor each year 
that no gardening gets done, or very little, certainly no tree or hedge cutting and I 
worked it out with my own bin that there were six weeks that trimming could have been 
done in that you couldn’t do because there was no brown bin collection and not 
everybody has got transport to be able to take things along to the tip and I think that 
the contract should be renegotiated, perhaps it would be better not to collect this 
garden waste in the period mid-January to the end of February for example.

15



Councillor Elsey responded:

I’m a bit confused as the first question was relating to a cessation of the service in 
January and she is now suggesting that there is no gardening done in January, so it 
seems an irrelevance. But I reiterate, the fact the we have reinstated the service over 
those months means that there is each and every month throughout the twelve months 
of the year, whereas previously there was a three month period where we didn’t collect 
garden waste and I still don’t understand how a reduction in the collection means that 
people are unable to actually physically do their gardening. They simply do the 
gardening and if they can’t take it to the household recycling centre they store it in their 
brown bin until such times as the bin is collected. 

4. Question from Councillor Sandford

To Councillor North, Cabinet Member for Communities and Environment Capital

Could the Cabinet Member tell me when the lighting on the Multi Use Games Area on 
Mountsteven Avenue recreation ground is going to be working properly?  The lights 
were out of action for nearly a year and when I complained about this on behalf of 
residents I was told that Amey had lost the key and were unable to open the control 
panel to allow the lights to be repaired.  

Then a few weeks ago a new key was produced and the lights repaired but residents 
then complained that rather than switching off at 9pm they were actually on all night 
long.  When I asked officers about this I was told that there was a fault with the timer 
which required further repairs.  

The MUGA would be a great facility for young people in the Walton area but it is most 
used in the evenings and in winter months, needs adequate illumination but also lights 
which switch off at 9pm, so as to discourage young people from hanging around the 
area late at night and disturbing local residents.   Could I have an assurance that the 
Council and its contractors will fix any remaining faults and ensure that the lights are 
kept working properly in future?

Councillor North responded:

The lights have been out for a year, there have been no phone calls or emails and the 
first I have heard of it was this question. I do wonder why it has been brought to Full 
Council. Skanska were instructed by Serco Strategic Property to complete the repairs 
required for the lighting in the MUGA. On supply of a key, Skanska attended and found 
the fault to be with the time clock inside the feeder pillar. This is not a standard piece 
of equipment held in stock therefore in order to provide some illumination the lighting 
was set to default dawn till dusk illumination. The time clock was delivered on the 22nd 
January and will be installed by the end of January.  

Councillor Sandford asked the following supplementary question:

I raised the issue with the Council department responsible over twelve months ago and 
I was given an assurance that it was being sorted out and it was only in the Autumn 
period what the dark evenings came that local residents complained that this problem 
still hadn’t been sorted out. Can I ask why it takes over twelve months to sort out what 
seems to be a relatively simple difficulty, and can I also ask as this is by no means 
uncommon, also in my ward we actually have the Rhubarb Bridge and there are some 
lights on and near the bridge that have been out of action for over a three month period. 
Why does it take such a long time to get these simple faults sorted?

16



Councillor North responded:

I wasn’t aware additional lights were out, but I’m more than happy to look into it if he 
will send me a list and I’m more than happy for any Councillor to contact me if they feel 
there has been an undue delay in any lights and I will investigate and chase.

5. Question from Councillor Miners

To Councillor Holdich, Cabinet Member for Education

Noting the Local Government Association is predicting there will be a £12 Billion cost 
to create the 900,000 extra school places expected in England's schools over the next 
decade...Could the Leader please confirm what has been the financial cost to 
Peterborough City Council, so far, in making sure there are enough school places 
available locally? The government it seems, has not fully funded the true full cost of 
these extra school places in Peterborough. The Local Government Association 
estimates that councils across England are carrying a billion pounds of costs, because 
the government has been late in funding these extra school places.

Councillor Holdich responded:

The responsibility for creating sufficient school places rest with Local Authorities.  The 
2014 Surplus Capacity Return (SCAP) reported the creation, or planned creation, of 
7,659 additional school places for the period from 2010/11 to 2016/17.  This requires 
a total spend of £153m made up of £78m from Council borrowing, £14m from 
developer contributions and £61,742,799 from government funding. 

Further projects are being developed to take account of projected pressures at 
secondary school level and these will incur further costs to PCC.  We continue to 
petition government for funding for school places and take advantage of schemes such 
as free schools and the priority school building programme to bid for more resources.  
Officers were recently invited to DfE to outline the challenges faced in Peterborough.  
Stewart Jackson MP has been hugely supportive though constantly raising 
Peterborough’s educations challenges with Ministers and in the House of Commons.

Councillor Miners asked the following supplementary question:

Is there any possibility whatsoever of this city council getting some of its money back 
from Central Government because we are funding some school places.

Councillor Holdich responded:

No.

6. Question from Councillor Ferris

To Councillor Cereste, Leader of the Council and Cabinet Member for Growth, 
Strategic Planning and Business Engagement

Could the Leader of the Council update this Chamber on the progress made with 
supporting the Trustees of the Green Backyard in their bid to buy the site, given his 
commitment at the last Full Council meeting to granting them an extension? Can he 
also give a clear undertaking that he will do everything legally within his power to assist 
them? What assurances can he give that the full social, health and environmental 
benefits will be taken into account when assessing the bids?

17



Councillor Cereste responded:

The commitment I made at the last council meeting remains in force to provide the full 
support of the council to support the trustees in raising funding to buy the site.  

There has been recent discussions between the trustees and both the Chief Executive 
and the Deputy Leader.  It has been agreed, that subject to a memorandum of 
understanding being signed, that an extension of 6 months from March will be given to 
allow the trustees to develop a business case for the use of the site.  This business 
plan will include a financial business case, including identified sources of funding, plans 
for the use of the site and fully capturing the community and education benefits of the 
Green Backyard to the City in the future.  

Councillor Ferris asked the following supplementary question:

Is Councillor Cereste able to give us any indication as to how the decision to accept 
or reject any proposals from the Green Backyard will be made after that six month 
period has expired?

Councillor Cereste responded:

The process will be whatever it is that the Council requires, the Council and the Cabinet 
to make. If you are asking me what the decision will be, I have no idea. Frankly, I hope 
they get the money and I hope they get what they want but if they don’t, we will all have 
to make a decision.

7. Question from Councillor Fower

To Councillor Elsey, Cabinet Member for Street Scene, Waste Management and 
Communications

It was recently reported that after 73% of city households had not signed up to the 
brown bin scheme, an extra 1,575 tonnes of garden waste had found its way into black 
bins in just five months. Could the relevant Cabinet Member please let me know how 
much money this local authority pays in landfill tax per tonne and how many tonnes in 
total of garden waste ended up in the black bins during the same period?

Councillor Elsey responded:

In 2014 /15 approximately one third of the households who currently had the garden 
waste service signed up for the service, that’s nearly 2,000 households out of 63,000  

Together with the garden waste collected at the HRC, these households generated 
approximately 3/4 of the garden waste collected in the same period as under the 
previous arrangement in the five months of June to October 2014.

We estimated an extra 1,575 tonnes of garden waste in black bins over this period 
which cost the Council £118,000 which was significantly less than the £180,000 that 
we had budgeted for within the figure that we already had set aside for dealing with 
municipal waste. 

Landfill tax is set nationally at £80 per tonne.  

Councillor Fower asked the following supplementary question:

18



The other day a question was asked at Gloucestershire County Council and the 
question was asking their Cabinet Member ‘are you yet in a position to let me know the 
length of the contract with UBB is negotiating to dump toxic fly ash in Peterborough?’ 
now I don’t know whether there is going to be toxic fly ash finding its way from 
Gloucestershire to here, but will that then have a further impact on the landfill tax that 
this Administration pays?

Councillor Elsey responded:

I fail to see how that’s a supplementary question to do with garden waste. So I do not 
see that it is one that should be answered. Thank you.

8. Question from Councillor Ash

To Councillor Hiller, Cabinet Member for Planning and Housing Services

Dogsthorpe Ward councillors have raised concerns on several occasions about the 
poor quality of street lighting.

The lack of adequate lighting at the bus lay by in Belvior Way is of particular concern. 
We also have resident complaints about lack of action on lights in Western Avenue 
and Eastfield Road. We have also noted that other areas of the City are also poorly lit.

Can the Cabinet Member give assurances that streets are properly lit and that safety 
for all road users, especially for pedestrians is not compromised and could he  please 
inform Council what is the general response/repair time in getting faulty or damaged 
street lighting repaired, from the first report to repair? 

Councillor Hiller may have responded:

Belvoir Way:  The lighting on Belvoir Way was replaced in 2011 to white light LED from 
the old orange lanterns. All replacement schemes are installed in line with current 
standards and I can confirm this is the case for Belvoir Way. Prior to the scheme there 
was no lighting within the layby area however when the bus stop was upgraded, the 
opportunity to install a street light on the green space opposite the bus stop was taken, 
significantly increasing the illumination of the area. 

Western Avenue:  A fault was repaired on 7 January 2015. This is the only fault 
reported on Western Avenue in the past 18 months. 

Eastfield Road.:  The lighting on Eastfield Road has recently been replaced. PCC 59 
and 63 at the Newark Road junction require a new telecell and these will be installed 
shortly. A further column close to the junction with Eye Road was struck in a car 
accident and we are currently awaiting a new lantern in order to complete the works.

Officers proactively identify faulty lights by scouting the highway network once a month. 
Over the past 3 years approximately 7000 street lights have been replaced. 

Lighting faults are attended to with 7 days from day of report. Standard maintenance 
works will be completed within these visits. There are however some faults such as 
cable faults, electricity supply faults and replacements that will take longer to resolve 
due to the requirement for the attendance of specialist resources, third parties and 
non-stock items. 

19



9. Question from Councillor Fower

To Councillor Hiller, Cabinet Member for Planning and Housing Services

In my ward there are several bollards located on council land that are presently 
damaged and therefore, no longer fit for purpose. Given, that thought must go into the 
initial installation of these bollards, there must therefore have a recognised value and 
purpose. Therefore, would the relevant cabinet member be willing to join me on a site 
inspection of the three locations I know of also let me know how often signage and 
street furniture on public footpaths are checked by council officers?

Councillor Hiller may have responded:

Bollards are erected for different reasons and at many different locations across the 
city. Bollards and other street furniture (signs etc.) erected on the Highway are 
inspected during routine safety and condition inspections in accordance with the 
Highway Maintenance Plan; inspection frequencies vary from monthly to yearly 
dependent on the asset hierarchy. Councillors and residents alike are encouraged to 
report damaged bollards and other street furniture to Peterborough Direct. If Councillor 
Fower could let me know where the damaged bollards are located I will ensure that 
they are inspected and repaired or replaced as necessary.

10. Question from Councillor Davidson

To Councillor Hiller, Cabinet Member for Planning and Housing Services

There are many roads in Peterborough which are in need of resurfacing works and 
improvements to street lighting. In my ward there are a number of potholes at 
Werrington Green Junction and along Fulbridge Road which are of substantial size and 
in the recent poor weather, could prove to be quite dangerous, there are also a number 
of roads which are still awaiting the improvement of LED lighting. Could the relevant 
Cabinet Member please advise as to how road maintenance is prioritised and could he 
give an estimate of how long on average it takes to address an issue such as repairing 
a pothole and when it is expected that the roll out of LED street lighting will be 
completed. 

Councillor Hiller may have responded:

Highway maintenance – Road maintenance programmes [planned maintenance] are 
based on the results of formal annual condition surveys of the full Peterborough road 
network and take into account a number of factors including asset hierarchy and of 
course available budgets. The draft 2015/16 highway maintenance programme 
includes a number of carriageway and footway treatments in the Werrington area 
identified in this way. 

Routine and reactive maintenance work on Peterborough’s Highway asset is identified 
during programmed statutory safety inspections and ad hoc inspections following 
reports from the public or other sources. All safety defects have specific intervention 
limits that dictate the appropriate response time, for example the response time for a 
carriageway pothole between 40 and 74mm depth is 24hrs. Whilst every effort is made 
to complete first time permanent repairs to potholes in some circumstances it is still 
necessary to carry out an interim repair making plans to complete more permanent 
works during subsequent programmes of work.

Looking ahead Skanska are working in close partnership with the council to acquire an 
innovative mechanical solution to assist with pothole repairs.

20



11. Question from Councillor Murphy

To Councillor Seaton, Cabinet Member for Resources

As the Cabinet Member will be aware, I have raised questions concerning Sure Start 
claw back and the Veranda Centre. Can you therefore let me know why, despite raising 
the matter at Audit Committee and with officers on a number of occasions, I still have 
not been given a reply or details of the Sure Start officer/regulator with whom I can 
discuss the regulation of this matter. Could it please be confirmed as to what the 
estimate is of the amount that might be required to be paid back and why have I not 
received an answer to my enquiries over many months since last year?

Councillor Seaton may have responded:

Services in the area still continue but were moved out of the Veranda to a dedicated 
facility in Gladstone Primary which (with the exception of office accommodation) 
virtually replicates the offer at the Veranda Centre. The rationale for this was; as 
families were not using the Veranda Centre, it was decided to replicate the successful 
model of Children’s Centre services that are run out of Fulbridge Academy at 
Gladstone Primary. 

Officers have been in dialogue with the Department for Education regarding the shifting 
of services from the Veranda to Fulbridge Academy, specifically the claw back element 
of the Sure Start grant and the possibility of claw back being applied to this scenario. 

The Department for Education are clear that their interest, with regard to claw back, 
will change to the new asset in the Fulbridge Academy, rather than remain with the old 
asset in the Veranda. 

12. Question from Councillor Fower

To Councillor Hiller, Cabinet Member for Planning and Housing Services

The street light PCC10 located in Carron Drive, Werrington, remains covered by 
unkempt leylandii, which means no light is able to be cast, causing a waste electricity 
and an ineffective service for local residents from this council. Can the relevant Cabinet 
Member, therefore tell me why this issue has not been rectified, in accordance to the 
authority’s legal responsibility to maintaining lights on public land and how often are 
street lights inspected, if ever?

Councillor Hiller may have responded:

Despite a number of formal requests the owner of 33 Carron Drive has not cut back 
the leylandii concerned, which is located on private property. Legal action can be taken 
against the owner to ensure the works are carried out but to expedite matters Amey 
have been instructed to undertake the works.

13. Question from Councillor Sandford

To Councillor Cereste, Leader of the Council and Cabinet Member for Growth, 
Strategic Planning and Business Engagement

Would the leader of the Council consider putting in place a robust system for dealing 
with actions requested or required by motions which are agreed at Full Council and 
reporting actions and outcomes back to Councillors.  Currently it appears that many 
motions are passed requesting Cabinet of officers to do certain things but often Council 

21



members are not informed what if anything has happened as a result.  

Councillor Cereste may have responded: 

In line with usual practice, the Democratic Services Officers follow up on the actions 
arising from the meetings of Council and direct all approved motions to the relevant 
department.

If Councillor Sandford would like to see the introduction of a monitoring process, then 
he can refer this to the Member Officer Working Group for consideration. 

14. Question from Councillor Davidson

To Councillor Seaton, Cabinet Member for Resources

Could the relevant Cabinet Member please confirm the actual cost to the Council of 
the new financial system that is due to replace the Oracle system? 

Councillor Seaton may have responded:

The financial system is critical to the operation of the Council. We use it to raise orders 
and pay suppliers, raise invoices and collect debt and to manage our finances.

It became clear that our current system needed upgrading or replacing, otherwise there 
was a risk of failure in the future. The Council cannot risk failure of such a critical 
business system.

To support this project, a budget of £1.4m was included in the capital programme. This 
was included in the budget approved by Council last March.

A thorough review of options was undertaken, starting with a comparison of six 
systems, and then narrowing this down to a choice of upgrading Oracle or replacing 
with Agresso. Ultimately the cost of replacing our system is around three quarters the 
cost of upgrading it over the life of the system.

The Cabinet Member Decision Notice I approved back in May outlined the review we 
had undertaken, and the cost comparison.

The contract for replacement approved was for £1.28m, the remainder of the budget 
being for contingency and internal costs. The project is underway, and we currently 
expect to come on budget.

15. Question from Councillor Miners

To Councillor Hiller, Cabinet Member for Planning and Housing Services

Noting the special Parking Enforcement Programme (PEP) bye laws operating 
throughout Old Dogsthorpe, and the tour undertaken in Old Dogsthorpe many, many 
months ago involving the Leader, Ward Cllr and a senior officer, responsible for co-
ordinating an action programme to close the legal loopholes in PEP.....could the Leader 
please inform me what progress has been made to stop people parking in their front 
curtilages without a drooped kerb, driveway or hard standing....as quite a few sites are 
still being terribly damaged?

Councillor Hiller may have responded:

The statutory duty of the Highway Authority is to ensure the highway network is safe 

22



and available for use. Where reports of verge damage are received our primary 
concern is how this impacts on the safety of highway users. We may under Section 
184(1)(a) execute necessary works and recover the expenses reasonably incurred 
from the owner or occupier, however such enforcement action must be [and is] limited 
to those offences that represent a significant risk to the safety of highway users. 
Evidence in Dogsthorpe shows that the majority of verge damage reports are of a 
cosmetic nature and represent little or no risk to the public at large. 

In the past a letter cautioning Dogsthorpe residents that they are committing an offence 
and how to arrange for a ‘dropped crossing’ to be constructed have been delivered to 
properties committing parking offences – as well as providing residents with 
information these act as a formal legal warning should enforcement action be 
warranted in the future. 

An overall analysis of the Dogsthorpe area has shown that there would be a total cost 
of £53,000 - an average of £1262 per property to rectify the situation. Currently the 
council does not have sufficient budget to implement such action as there is a high risk 
we would not be able to recover the costs from the residents, particularly given most 
are Cross Keys tenants.

23



This page is intentionally left blank

24



COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM No. 4

4 MARCH 2015 PUBLIC REPORT

  MAYOR’S ANNOUNCEMENTS

1.    PURPOSE OF REPORT 

1.1 This report is a brief summary of the Mayor’s activities on the Council’s behalf during the last 
meetings cycle, together with relevant matters for information.
(Events marked with * denotes events attended by the Deputy Mayor on the Mayor’s behalf). 

2. ACTIVITIES AND INFORMATION – From 26 January to 1 March 2015

Attending Event Venue
Mayor and Deputy Mayor Afternoon Tea for ex Mayor’s Officer The Parlour
Mayor and Deputy Mayor Holocaust Memorial Day St John's Church

Mayor Peterborough Children's University Graduation University Centre 
Peterborough

Mayor The Chairman of Huntingdonshire District Council 
Holocaust Memorial Day Service

Civic Suite

Mayor Planning meeting for Full Council Meeting The Parlour

Mayor Update meeting for Full Council Meeting The Parlour

Mayor and Deputy Mayor Full Council Council Chamber

Mayor Commemoration Service for Katharine of Aragon Procession from the 
Museum to The 
Cathedral

Mayor Meeting with The Ambassador of Spain and the 
Minister Councillor for Cultural and Scientific Affairs

The Parlour

Mayor, Deputy Mayor and 
Deputy Mayoress

Mayor's Charity Dinner Ibrahimi's Restaurant

Mayor Meeting with The Consul General of Portugal The Parlour

Deputy Mayor and Deputy 
Mayoress

Chairman of South Kesteven District Council’s 
Charity Gala

The Guildhall Arts 
Centre

Mayor Deafblind UK - launch of new digital space Deafblind UK

Mayor Mayor of March Charity Dinner and Ball BRAZA Club

Mayor New Year, New beginning, New Vision 2015 Faizan e Madinah 
Mosque

Mayor Charity Committee The Parlour

Mayor Citizenship Ceremony Council Chamber

Mayor Mayor's Charity Coffee Morning Reception room

Deputy Mayor and Deputy 
Mayoress

The Mayor of Rushden and the Mayor of Higham 
Ferrers Town Council - joint Civic Valentines Dinner

Rushden Town Bowls 
Club

Deputy Mayor and Deputy 
Mayoress

Piano/violin concert St John's Church

Deputy Mayor and Deputy 
Mayoress

High Sheriff Awards 14/15 Cottenham Village 
College

25



Attending Event Venue
Mayor Mazda Launch Preview event Donalds Mazda

Mayor Meeting with the Mayor’s Chaplain to discuss the 
Mayor's Civic Service

The Parlour

Mayor Froglifes River Nene Dragon Finder Project Launch 
Event

Council Chamber

Mayor Chairman of East Cambridgeshire District Council 
Civic Reception

The Hayward Theatre

Mayor MK Dons v Peterborough United Directors’ box at 
Stadium: MK

Mayor Cambridge University Officers' Training Corps Annual 
Dinner

Cambridge Union 
Society Debating 
Chamber

Mayor Digni-tea Event - Supporting Dignity in Care Bluebird Care 
(Peterborough & 
Rutland)

Mayor Youth MP Election Evening Reception Room

Mayor Visit by School Council from Welland Academy The Parlour and Council 
Chamber

Mayor, Deputy Mayor and 
Deputy Mayoress

Civic Awards Ceremony Reception Room

Deputy Mayor and Deputy 
Mayoress

Private View of Exhibition at Museum Peterborough Museum

Mayor Mayor of Chatteris Charity Ball 2015 The Working Men’s Club

Deputy Mayor and Deputy 
Mayoress

Mayor of Wellingborough Charity Event The Castle

Deputy Mayor and Deputy 
Mayoress

RAF Wyton Band 60th anniversary Concert Peterborough Cathedral

Deputy Mayor and Deputy 
Mayoress

Mayor of Wisbech Civic Service St Peter & St Paul 
Church

Mayor City of Peterborough Symphony Orchestra Spring 
concert

Voyager Concert Hall

Mayor Launch of Safeguarding Children and Young People 
in Mosques and Madrasahs in Peterborough

Jack Hunt Secondary 
School

3. BACK GROUND DOCUMENTS (IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE ACCESS TO INFORMATION 
ACT 1985)

None.

4. DIRECTOR RESPONSIBLE

Director of Governance.

26



COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM No. 9

4 MARCH 2015 PUBLIC REPORT

EXECUTIVE RECOMMENDATIONS TO COUNCIL

(a) CABINET RECOMMENDATION – PETERBOROUGH CULTURE STRATEGY 
2015-2020

Cabinet, at its meeting of 23 February 2015, received a report from the Cabinet 
Member for City Centre Management, Culture and Tourism. Culture and leisure 
services were long established priorities of the Council and the Council published a 
cultural strategy five years ago to deliver its priorities up to 2014.  

Recognising the need to take a fresh look at its approach and priorities to develop a 
new culture strategy, the Council had developed a refreshed strategy, as set out in the 
document ‘Peterborough Culture Strategy 2015-2020’.

The purpose of the report was for Cabinet to approve the strategy and recommend its 
adoption to Council. 

IT IS RECOMMENDED that Council:

Adopt the Peterborough Culture Strategy 2015-2020.

(The original Cabinet report and Appendix follows this report).

27



(b) CABINET RECOMMENDATION – BUDGET 2015/16 AND MEDIUM TERM 
FINANCIAL STRATEGY 2024/25 

Cabinet, at its meeting of 23 February 2015, received a report as part of the Council’s 
formal budget process set out within the Constitution and legislative requirements to set 
a balanced budget for 2015/16 and medium term financial strategy to 2024/25.

The purpose of the report was to recommend to Council budget proposals for 2015/16 
through to 2024/25, in line with the final local government finance settlement for 
2015/16 and in advance of some Department for Education specific grants being 
finalised. The draft Medium Term Financial Strategy (MTFS) was presented during the 
Cabinet meeting of 19 January and, subject to updated information contained within the 
report to 23 February 2015, was the basis for Cabinet to recommend the budget for 
approval by Council. Attached to the report were the relevant documents Cabinet 
referred to within the report.

The report also provided an update on budget consultation responses received so far, 
recognising that that the consultation remained open until 2 March and that some 
meetings with key stakeholder groups were still to take place. 

Cabinet endorsed the recommendations, including the recommendations to Council.

IT IS RECOMMENDED that Council:

1) Have regard to the consultation feedback received to date and statutory advice 
detailed in the report when determining the budget recommendations, noting that 
consultation remains open and further update will be provided at the Council 
meeting.

2) Approve:

a) The budget is set in the context of council priorities and has been undertaken 
following a two phase approach to consider budget proposals to set a balanced 
budget for 2015/16;

b) The budget for 2015/16 takes note of the budget monitoring position for 2014/15;
c) The revenue budget for 2015/16 and proposed cash limits for 2016/17 to 2024/25 

(including investment and savings proposals);
d) The capital programme for 2015/16 and proposed cash limits to 2024/25 and 

associated capital strategy, treasury management strategy and asset management 
plan;

e) A council tax freeze in 2015/16 with indicative increases for planning purposes of 
2% for 2016/17 to 2024/25;

f)    That education funding is spent at the level of funding resources available to both 
schools and the council in 2015/16 and future estimates to 2024/25;

g) The budget is supported adequately with reserves, provisions and robust budget 
estimates set in the context of the risks outlined in the report;

h) The proposals for setting fees and charges for 2015/16.

3) Approve the Council Tax setting resolution as set out in Appendix A.

The budget book has been circulated as a separate document.

28



 

                                                                                 ITEM 9(a) – FOR INFORMATION 
 

CABINET AGENDA ITEM No. 

23 FEBRUARY 2015 PUBLIC REPORT

Cabinet Member(s) responsible: Cllr Lucia Serluca, Cabinet Member for City Centre 
Management, Culture and Tourism

Contact Officer(s): Lisa Roberts, Strategic Client Manager: Culture and Leisure Tel: 01733 
452386

PETERBOROUGH CULTURE STRATEGY 2015 - 2020

R E C O M M E N D A T I O N S
FROM : Cabinet Member for City Centre Management, 
Culture and Tourism 

Deadline date : n/a

That Cabinet approve the ‘Peterborough Culture Strategy 2015 – 2020’ (Appendix 1) and 
recommend its adoption to Council. 

1. ORGIN OF THE REPORT

1.1 This report is submitted to Cabinet from the Cabinet Member for City Centre Management, 
Culture and Tourism.

2. PURPOSE AND REASON FOR REPORT

2.1 To allow Cabinet to consider and approve the proposed Peterborough Culture Strategy 2015 
- 2020.

2.2 This report is for Cabinet to consider under its Terms of Reference No. 3.2.1 ‘to take 
collective responsibility for the delivery of all strategic executive functions within the Council’s 
Major Policy and Budget Framework and lead the Council’s overall improvements 
programmes to deliver excellent service’. 

3. TIMESCALE 

Is this a Major Policy 
Item/Statutory Plan?

Yes If Yes, date for 
relevant Cabinet 
Meeting

23 February 2015

Date for relevant Council 
meeting

4 March 2015 Date for submission 
to Government 
Dept
(please specify 
which Government 
Dept)

N/A

29



 

4. PETERBOROUGH CULTURE STRATEGY 2015 – 2020

4.1 Culture and leisure services are long established priorities of the Council.  The Council 
published a cultural strategy five years ago to deliver its priorities up to 2014.  

Recognising the need to take a fresh look at its approach and priorities to develop a new 
culture strategy, the Council has developed a refreshed strategy – as set out in the document 
‘Peterborough Culture Strategy 2015-2020’ attached as Appendix 1. 

4.2 A REFRESHED CULTURE STRATEGY FOR PETERBOROUGH: OUR APPROACH

The Culture Strategy has been developed as an ambitious statement of aspiration. The 
draft strategy positions culture at the centre of Peterborough’s approach to improving quality 
of life and improving life chances. This is expressed through a clear ‘vision statement’ and 
underpinned by three inter-linked objectives: 

 Increasing participation in cultural activity; 

 Developing, retaining and attracting people with talent;

 Making better use of the city’s spaces – more places to go, more things to do

The document is pitched at existing cultural producers in the city; but it will have a wider 
resonance within the city if we can communicate effectively that 

a) There is a huge amount happening already that we are celebrating;

b) This same activity represent the building blocks to go further.

The strategy is allied to, supportive of and consistent with our approach to improving the city 
centre, to growth and inward investment and to tourism (the visitor economy strategy). 

It is intended that this Council strategy document is to be used in partnership with wider 
creative organisations and individuals in Peterborough. 

The strategy focusses on arts, music, heritage, libraries and literature and festivals and 
events. The strategy does not address sport specifically, which will be the subject of further 
work in the coming year, nor is it a mirror image of a business plan for Vivacity. The Trust is 
one partner among many cultural organisations and individuals.

The strategy references and links to current city programmes such as: 

 The heritage ambition
 The music hub and singing strategy 
 The nationally funded creative people and places programme, awarded to 

Peterborough in 2013
 Creative learning pathways with Peterborough Regional College and children’s 

university
 Creative apprenticeships and traineeships 
 Vivacity’s business plan 

During the last year, the Cabinet Advisor for Culture, Cllr Graham Casey, has held a number 
of wide-ranging discussions with stakeholders. Key points made about the strategy include:
 

 Whilst the ‘Peterborough Cuture Strategy 2015-2020 ‘ is a  Council document, it needs 

30



 

to be a strategy for the whole of the City;
 It should be positive – this is an important opportunity to recognise and celebrate how 

much Peterborough has to offer; 
 It should be ambitious – and show how we will measure what we are trying to 

achieve;
 It should identify and commit to specific priorities – things we can do and/or support 

that will make a real difference.

4.3 WHAT DOES THE STRATEGY COVER? 

The strategy sets out:

i. Our vision

To bring local, regional, national and international interest in, and acclaim for the City’s 
cultural offer based on the variety and quality of the inspiring experiences it offers. One city, 
many communities. 

ii. Our priorities

1) To further increase participation in and enjoyment of cultural activities and 
celebrate our divers – culture, connecting and reflecting our communities

The Culture Strategy is committed to creative engagement and participation across all areas 
in Peterborough – involving people to enable them to make their own decisions about what 
excites them, and to ensure that the cultural offer is relevant to local people. 

Peterborough has a range of excellent cultural institutions and programmes which residents 
can enjoy. Many residents would like to engage more in cultural activities but encounter a 
range of barriers including time, transport, price, availability of information and familiarity. This 
priority aims to overcome these barriers and enable more people to participate in cultural 
activities.  

2) To attract, develop, promote, retain and attract talent, including developing the 
local creative economy, complementing the city’s growth

The Culture Strategy will aid in the development of opportunities for the next generation of 
cultural producers and practitioners, innovative and imaginative programming brokering new 
relationships between professional and non-professionals and cultural organisations, 
providing pathways through early years to higher education.  

The strategy will outline projects that will experiment with programmes, locations and forms, 
and set ambitious targets for increasing levels of participation, both in numbers and levels of 
activities. There will be new pathways to excellence, developing and retention of talent.

3) To create places and spaces for culture – using the public spaces and our green 
open spaces to ensure there are ‘places to go and things to do’

The aim of the ’Peterborough Culture Strategy 2015-2020’ document, is to develop a stronger 
cultural infrastructure in the city’s spaces through the development of networks, capacity and 
relationships, making links with the public realm works and exploiting underutilised spaces 

31



 

within the city. The aim for the strategy is to support high quality programming and the 
production of new work through accessing and utilising under used spaces across the city.

iii. The impact we are seeking to have  

 To raise the profile of culture and increase participation within the city

 To raise the profile of the city through culture and increase visitor numbers

Each of these are explored in more detail in the Culture Strategy document attached in  
Appendix 1

4.4 DELIVERY
The strategy does not require any additional Council funding. It seeks to make better use of 
all of the existing funding streams that support culture in the city – and to enable more 
external funding to be drawn in. 

The Culture Strategy has been developed – on behalf of the Cabinet Advisor, and through a 
steering group – by the strategic client team. The partnership approach adopted during the 
development of, and subsequent consultation on the strategy, suggests the need for a small 
executive group made up of the same stakeholders to oversee progress with and 
implementation of the strategy. 

We propose a core delivery group – Culture Peterborough – supported and informed by a 
wider range of stakeholders to take ownership of the strategy and oversee its delivery. The 
group will be built around the major cultural institutions in the city. The group will look at ways 
of involving the private sector within the approach. The proposed functions of Culture 
Peterborough include: 

 Inform, own and oversee the delivery of the Culture Strategy; 
 Provide a voice for the sector; 
 Network and share information; 
 Seek resources to deliver the strategy; 
 Make strategic connections with and contribute to the Local Enterprise Partnership 
 Advise on selected projects and programmes; 
 Encourage collaboration in the sector; 
 Monitor progress on the strategy and other key cultural projects. 

The Council will play a key role in Culture Peterborough and will support its development. 
Specific priorities for the Council will include: 

 Advocating the importance of culture; 
 Supporting partnership working; 
 Delivering selected events and programmes; 
 Commissioning and funding key programmes and events; 
 Linking culture to other key city priorities; 
 Liaising with national and regional cultural bodies on behalf of the city. 

4.5 IMPLICATIONS
As budgets become more constrained, the Council will need to ensure the very best possible 
return on any continuing investment in discretionary services. Through working in partnership 
with other organisations to deliver the cultural strategy, the Council will be able to deliver the 

32



 

outlined priorities without increasing resources. 

5. CONSULTATION 

This report has been developed with the Cabinet Advisor for Culture and Recreation and 
discussed with a wide range of stakeholders through the Culture Strategy Steering Group, 
including: 

 Strong and Supportive Communities scrutiny committee 
 Council departments
 Arts Council England
 English Heritage  
 Opportunity Peterborough
 Vivacity 
 Metal
 PHACE
 Peterborough Cathedral
 Peterborough learning partnership
 Peterborough regional college
 The heritage attractions groups
 Peterborough music makers 
 Creative Peterborough
 Art in the Heart 
 Peterborough music hub
 Individual artists from all disciplines 

The Culture Strategy has been considered twice by the Strong and Supportive Community 
Scrutiny Committee on the 15th January 2014 and again on the 16th July 2014. The 
Committee’s comments have been incorporated into the document in Appendix 1.  

6. ANTICIPATED OUTCOMES

6.1 For Cabinet to approve the Peterborough Culture Strategy 2015 – 2020 and to recommend 
its adoption to Council.

7. REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS

7.1 To approve the proposed Peterborough Culture Strategy, replacing the current strategy 
which expired at the end of December 2014. 

8. ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED

8.1 The only alternative option considered was to not revise the strategy, however this would 
mean an outdated document, lacking focus on the Council’s current priorities. 

9. IMPLICATIONS 

9.1 Financial implications 

The Culture Strategy has been constructed in such a way that it should not have any financial 
impact on the Council and will be delivered by a wide range of culture groups and 
organisations. The Council, subject to consultation, will be reducing the service fee to Vivacity 

33



 

in 2015 by £750,000, which will have an impact on the two festivals which Vivacity produce 
that are detailed within the strategy, resulting in a reduction in the duration of the festivals and 
festival programming. 

The Council has invested in other cultural programmes such as Peterborough Presents which 
will deliver the majority of the strategy outcomes and supplements the current festivals 
programme for the Council and Vivacity. 

9.2 Legal implications

The Council has a statutory duty under the Public Libraries and Museums Act 1964 regarding 
the library services (which are referenced in the Culture Strategy). The Council must:

1. Provide a comprehensive and efficient library service for all persons in the area that 
want to make of it;

2. Promote the service; and
3. Lend books and other printed material free of charge for those who live, work or study 

in the area.

The legal implications regarding library services will be considered in a separate report 
‘Libraries Review’ for Cabinet to approve on the 20th March 2015.  

The other services provided by the Council under the Culture Strategy being arts, heritage 
and cultural events are discretionary services and there are no legal implications for these 
discretionary services. 

10 BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS

10.1 Existing Council strategies, the Funding and Management Agreement dated 1 May 2010 
between the Council and Vivacity, and published documents by the Arts Council and Cities 
outlook 2014.

11. APPENDICES

11.1 There is one appendix to this report:

Appendix 1: Peterborough Culture Strategy 2015 -2020. 

34



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

  PETERBOROUGH          

  CULTURE STRATEGY    

  2015 - 2020 

35

aag644
Text Box
  APPENDIX 1



 
 

Culture Strategy 2015 - 2020 
 

2 
 

 

CONTENTS 
 

 

Forward           3 

Peterborough: Our City, Our Culture       4 

Culture in our City today         5  

Our Legacy          12 

Priority One: Increasing participation       14 

Priority Two: Developing, reatining and attracting people with talent  16 

Priority Three: Making the best use of City spaces     18 

Moving forward: Keeping on track       21 

Delivering the strategy         23 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Images souced from Peterborough City Council, Vivacity & Metal Culture 

36



 
 

Culture Strategy 2015 - 2020 
 

3 
 

FOREWORD 
Councillor Graham Casey 

 ‘Peterborough: a great place to go, with great things to do’.  

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
Peterborough has been my home for over 25 years.  
 
I am grateful for the warmth of the city’s welcome and proud to serve as a Councillor for a city that 
continues to offer a warm welcome to new residents of all nationalities.  
 
I know the importance and value of culture. I’m fortunate to be an enthusiastic consumer and even, 
at times, producer of culture. I understand the benefits culture can bring, whether it’s the simple 
pleasure of being entertained, but also to be inspired and challenged.  
 
I want to make it even easier for as many people as possible to see, hear and participate in high-
quality cultural experiences in Peterborough. 
 
This strategy is not about spending more money. It is both about making the very best use of the 
wealth of existing resources and partly about ensuring there is a long-term return on all the existing 
investments in culture.  
  
The cultural strategy recognises the significance of the cultural and creative sectors in making 
Peterborough a cultural city, and advocates continued support and investment. It also addresses 
concerns facing the sector and considers how to maximise opportunities for the cultural life of 
Peterborough to flourish.  
 
The cultural strategy builds on this and goes on to outline strengths, challenges, actions and 
aspirations.  
 
The strategy identifies priorities for the city council and our cultural partners that will help provide 
the leadership and coordination our strategy requires.  
 
I believe that the cultural offer, the activities, the organisations and individuals, the buildings and 
the inspirational work that goes on must be recognised and supported for the good of the city. 
 
The culture strategy encompasses arts, heritage, libraries and public space for cultural activity. 
The strategy team has undertaken a wide range of research and consultation activities to develop 
a close understanding of Peterborough’s cultural sector and potential actions for the cultural 
steering group and partners to implement.  
 
Finally I would like to commend all our cultural partners who strive to make a real difference in the 
city. I am proud of the work that we lead as a council and the work produced through our partners.  
 
I hope this strategy will help galvanise the city’s fantastic cultural organisations and individuals to 
work together to help delivery our shared vision for culture in Peterborough.

37



 
 

Culture Strategy 2015 - 2020 
 

4 
 

 
PETERBOROUGH: OUR CITY, OUR CULTURE 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Our Vision 

To bring local, regional, national and international interest in, and acclaim for, the city’s 

cultural offer based on the variety and quality of the inspiring experiences it offers. 

One city – many communities. 

 

Our Priorities 

 To further increase participation in and enjoyment of cultural activities and celebrate our 

diversity – culture, connecting and reflecting our communities. 

 

 To attract, develop, promote, retain talent, including developing the local creative 

economy, complementing the city’s growth. 

 

 To create places and spaces for culture – using the public spaces and our green open 

spaces to ensure there are ‘places to go and things to do’. 

 

Our Legacy 

 To raise the profile of culture and increase participation in cultural activity within the city 

 

 To raise the profile of the city through culture and increase visitor numbers. 

 

 

 

 

38



 
 

Culture Strategy 2015 - 2020 
 

5 
 

CULTURE IN OUR CITY TODAY 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Peterborough’s history stretches back beyond the Bronze Age, yet in demographic terms, 
Peterborough is a youthful city. This makes Peterborough distinct from many other cities and 
areas in the UK.  It is also a highly multicultural city, with people of different cultural 
backgrounds and heritage integrating and complementing one another to create a rich and 
dynamic cultural landscape. This strategy aims to reflect this dynamism and create 
opportunities which will enhance the city’s heritage, arts, libraries and public spaces for local 
people and visitors alike. 
 
These characteristics make Peterborough an exciting place to live and work.  
 

 Peterborough is one of fastest growing city in the UK, the population has increased by 17% 

over the last decade to 183,000 (from (157,000)1. 

  

 The combination of a baby boom and inward migration from several countries including 

many from Eastern Europe has driven growth requiring 6,000 more primary school places.  

 

 Peterborough’s overall population is young – more than a third of the city’s population is 

under 25. 

 

 The city is diverse, with 20% of the population born outside of the UK and the City has the 

only primary school in the country where all of the pupils have English as a second 

language. 

 

Peterborough has a thriving – but disparate – cultural offer already: To understand 
Peterborough’s starting point the strategy takes into account the significant amount of work 
undertaken in this area over the last two years.  

 

 The city council provides a wide range of cultural activities from facilitating local groups to 

produce their own activities in the city centre, such as the Italian festival the Portuguese 

                                                

1 Cities outlook 2014 

39



 
 

Culture Strategy 2015 - 2020 
 

6 
 

festival, the Polish festival, African Splash, Diwali festival and a new introduction for 

2014, a Latvian festival, enabling them to bring cultural activities to the widest possible 

audience. 

 

 The city benefits from set calendar events, ranging from the Christmas lights switch on, 

music on the square to the Great Eastern Run. The council also support a wide range 

of commercial events such as the Willow Festival, concerts and the Beer Festival. 

During 2013 the council delivered and supported over 34 distinct cultural events for the 

city. 

 

 The arts have seen tremendous growth in the last two years, with the development and 

expansion of a new programme at the Key Theatre. The aim is to develop this venue into 

a cultural ‘hub’. In addition, the reopening of the Broadway for the 2013 winter season was 

a success. Both initiatives have demonstrated a real appetite for rich and diverse 

programmes, including comedy, drama, dance, spoken word, music, and film and 

community projects. 

 

 The City Gallery has introduced new programmes, such as Saturday art schools and life 

drawing.  Moreover, the success of the Open Exhibition has given artists living in the 

Peterborough area showcase opportunities to display their work alongside national and 

international exhibition programmes. 

 

 The Arts Festival has developed into a true international festival in every sense, 

welcoming acts and performers from across to world to develop arts activities with local 

communities, heedless of  barriers of language or background, and has attracted over 

30,000 visitors each year. 

   

 In 2012 the city produced a Heritage Ambition, which set the foundation for  the long term 
strategy for Peterborough's Heritage.  The contributions of the four Action Working Groups 
can be found at www.peterboroughheritage.org.uk   

 

 Peterborough Heritage builds partnerships, ignites new celebrations of heritage, enables 

and supports new activity, and strives to tell the story of the city in a captivating, enjoyable 

and accessible way.  

 

 Peterborough’s annual Heritage Festival has also attracted over 30,000 visitors, and 

incorporates stalls, historical re-enactors, activities and historic materials. It is the UK’s only 

city-centre-based multi-period living history festival and explores and celebrates over 3,500 

years of cultural activity in and around the city.

 

 

Peterborough hosts and works with, a range of National Portfolio organisations and 

established arts organisations:  

 

 Eastern Angles, Britten Sinfonia, Metal, NNF (Bridge Organisation), and SeaChange 

Arts all have growing relationships that are embedded in the city. These groups have made 

significant inroads in developing local groups and audiences and producing insightful and 

quality experiences for the people of Peterborough.  

40

http://www.peterboroughheritage.org.uk/


 
 

Culture Strategy 2015 - 2020 
 

7 
 

 

 The Natural History Museum has an established and growing partnership with 

Peterborough Museum and support from the British Museum has started in relation to 

other elements of the museum’s wide ranging collections. 

 

 

The city has an emerging musical offer:  

 

 The city’s Music Hub is delivering a three year programme of music for schools, funded 

through national government, which is due to be extended through another funding cycle 

and will develop a singing strategy, school CPD, access to musical instruments to all 

children in Peterborough schools and school engagement. 

 

 The growth of music has been extended through the development of the City’s choirs. 

Peterborough Young Singers and other choirs in the city have seen an active up take of 

singing activities, with the Male Voice Choir achieving national awards and success and 

Peterborough Sings leading on the development of a new singing strategy, making use 

of assets such as the Cathedral, St John’s Church and the Broadway Theatre. 
 

 Independent groups are growing in the city from Blok Collective and Peterborough 

Music Makers, to Creative Peterborough and Beat This who are now winning 

commissions and extending their activities, meaning more groups are being enabled to be 

independent and sustainable into the future.  

 

 Peterborough hosts independent organisations offering dance of all varieties, music, 

singing, drama and art.  Libraries and our community centres also offer venues for cultural 

activities for the very young from Wildcats and Fit to Dance.  

 

The city has a strong literature offer:  

 

 The city’s literature scene has gone from strength to strength, from through the creation 

of the city’s annual poet laureate competition through the developments at John Clare 

Cottage and the bringing of international authors to Peterborough’s libraries.   
 

The city’s heritage attractions have not just a rich past but also an exciting future:  

 

 Vivacity’s heritage attractions not only provide access to historic venues and the rich stories 

of Peterborough but are also offer an authentic  and engaging context for the city. 

Peterborough Museum has recently been refurbished, and further improvements to 

gallery spaces and the visitor offer are ongoing, providing the city with a flagship attraction. 

The Museum’s education service is working in partnership with the Natural History Museum 

to bring Real World Science to Peterborough’s schools providing free, stimulating, hands 

on workshops. 

   

 Flag Fen now hosts eight prehistoric Bronze Age log boats, found near the site at Must 

Farm.  Most of the boats are in an incredible state of preservation due to the wetland nature 

of the area. Many were virtually intact and some have elaborate features including lifting 

41



 
 

Culture Strategy 2015 - 2020 
 

8 
 

handles, grooves for transom boards, sterns and evidence of decoration. The boats are 

now being conserved for future generations and are open to the public to view at Flag Fen. 

This find has international significance and is a great opportunity to raise the profile of 

heritage in the city and country. One of the boats is already a resource for the National 

Curriculum, featuring in the British Museum-led ‘Teaching History with 100 objects’. 

 

 Longthorpe Tower is another Vivacity-managed attraction, housing the finest medieval 

wall paintings in Western Europe. Starting in 2015, a project will be launched to highlight 

the wealth of medieval art contained in the Tower, local churches and other venues in the 

area. 

 

 The Cathedral has received a grant from the Heritage Lottery Fund for £2.4 million to 

enable the Cathedral to offer visitors a richer understanding of the life of the buildings, both 

past and present, which have stood on the site. Exciting developments as part of the 

Cathedral’s forthcoming 900th anniversary celebrations will include a new heritage centre, 

which will not only benefit the cathedral itself, but all heritage attractions in the City, through 

joint programmes and activity.  
 

 Sacrewell Farm has recently been successful in gaining Heritage Lottery Funding to 

renovate its 18th century watermill, restoring this important historic building and providing a 

venue and opportunity for Heritage Skills learning. 

 

 Burghley House has upgraded its visitor facilities recently, to present an exciting new 

interpretation of the finest Elizabethan mansion in the country. It has also launched an 

exciting programme of cross-disciplinary events to broaden its audience, including a highly 

popular season of outdoor cinema and a range of outdoor concerts. 

 

 The city also has a rich historic environment, with spaces, buildings, countryside and 

villages reflecting over 3,500 years of continuous human occupation. We wish to raise the 

profile and usage of these rich and irreplaceable resources for a wide variety of cultural 

uses. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

42



 
 

Culture Strategy 2015 - 2020 
 

9 
 

There are also other opportunities for school children to experience and enjoy culture:   

 

 The schools offer has grown through partnerships with many cultural organisations offering 

both on site and classroom experiences where pupils can develop new skills and lifelong 

learning opportunities.  

  

 Pupils’ cultural contributions are celebrated through the Music Awards and the Young 

People Film Awards, held every year in the city with growing attendance.  

There are opportunities for young people to acquire skills that can support a career in culture:  
 

 Degree courses are available at University Centre Peterborough ranging from, 

performing arts, archaeology, community arts and theatre practice, English literature to 

media studies. These courses give students the opportunity to develop and learn within 

their own city, retaining and using the city’s talent  

 

 Peterborough’s young people are benefitting from a new three year programme 

Peterborough Cultural Partnership, supported through the Norfolk & Norwich Festival 

Bridge (NNF), that has identified four strands: encouraging young cultural leadership 

activity; developing and commissioning events and activities which are young people led 

and focused; creating opportunities for arts and culturally focused professional 

development; and  developing better brokerage between the arts and cultural offer with 

schools 

 

 ‘Vivacity for Schools’ has now been launched, providing a new one-stop dedicated 
resource for teaching staff.  The website already has a live Vivacity for Schools portal, 
which will be developed further in partnership with teaching staff.  New strands of the 
Vivacity for Schools offer will support the Peterborough Heritage, Arts, Culture Enterprise, 
(PHACE) such as a developing Continued Professional Development menu for local 
schools. 

 

 Learning sits at the core of this Strategy - the growth of heritage education in the city has 
an ambition of its own.  Peterborough itself is an awe-inspiring learning resource, steeped 
in rich and diverse history, heritage and culture.  In the future, our desire is for 
Peterborough to be recognised as a centre of excellence for heritage learning.  From early 
years to higher education, from traditional to experimental; our partnerships and initiatives 
will support, grow, and foster understanding and pride in the city by those who live here 
and those who visit.  

Peterborough has made some significant progress in raising its profile already:  

 

 The city has achieved for the first time European funding for culture, becoming part of the 
ZEPA2 consortium, which aims to develop the sustainability of the arts festival, making 
links with Europe and producing a high-quality format, which will attract further investment. 
 

 Peterborough has been successful in attracting funding for a national project, Creative 
People and places. This has now been re-named Peterborough Presents. The project 
will see local groups organising themselves to champion culture, and will set up networks 
with micro-funding opportunities. The aim is to generate 35,000 active users 
(organisations and individual), including Step Up Community Association. 

 

43



 
 

Culture Strategy 2015 - 2020 
 

10 
 

 
 

 A significant amount of funding has been invested in Peterborough’s culture over the past 
20 years, with £13.5million from Heritage Lottery Fund alone (in excess of £3.75 per head 
per year) for heritage projects including Vivacity’s museum redevelopment. The Arts 
Council and also the Cabinet Office have funded new library initiatives, essential in terms 
of improving literacy levels across Peterborough. 
 

 The city’s Archive service has been recognised nationally by receiving the Pacesetter 
award for its innovative work using volunteers to catalogue and make significant archive 
documents more accessible for people. 

 
To build on and bring coherence to all of this activity, this strategy suggests three interlinked 

priorities to be taken forward by all the cultural organisations active in the city, working towards  

common priorities and outcomes.  

 

There will be a key role to be played Vivacity and its partner organisation Metal:  
 

 Vivacity is the council’s strategic partner for culture and leisure; an independent charitable 

trust responsible for the city’s arts, heritage, library and sports services. Vivacity has expert 

knowledge and plays the lead role in the city for artist and audience development.  It will 

build on the national recognition secured for the three year Forty Years On project – an 

ambitious and exciting programme of theatre, oral history and archive work, delivered in 

partnership with Eastern Angles.  

 

 

 Metal is now established in the city and is leading work to develop artists that live locally 

and to map the current cultural activity in the city. Metal has also produced, with city council 

funding, a new website for networking culture and events across Peterborough, 

www.idea1.org.uk. The website is open to anyone who wants to promote or list events in 

the city, making it a one stop shop for finding out what's happening today, tomorrow or this 

month in Peterborough. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

44



 
 

Culture Strategy 2015 - 2020 
 

11 
 

  

 

 

  OUR LEGACY  

 

45



 
 

Culture Strategy 2015 - 2020 
 

12 
 

This strategy is intended to secure two, mutually reinforcing benefits over the next five years: 

 To raise the profile of culture and participation in cultural activity within the city 

 To raise the profile of the city through culture and to increase visitor numbers  

 

As a result of the actions identified in this strategy, we expect:  

 More people to take part in cultural activities more often – tracked through the ‘citizen panel’ 

survey  

 

 More events to be taking place – tracked through online event guides, www.idea1.org.uk 

and Visit Britain  

 

 More facilities being used to provide cultural activities – tracked through bookings and the 

cultural strategy steering group.  

 

The people of Peterborough, individuals, community groups, and potential visitors will know:  

 What’s on where and when; 
 

 Who to ask for advice, guidance and support if they want to take part in, support or host a 
cultural event.  

 

Cultural organisations, and their leaders, will develop and work together to: 

 Grow participation and develop audiences; 
 

 Provide  programmes  that are relevant to and supportive of Peterborough’s ambitions; 
 

 Promote a compelling range of marketing materials and activities, promoting cultural 
activities. 

 

Peterborough’s cultural community will be: 

 Resilient – there will be a determined effort to grow memberships and audiences and to 
speak to visitors from outside the city. 
 

 Strategic – engaged in the long-term planning within the city to secure benefits for and from 
our residents, our visitors, our businesses and investors. 
 

 Collaborative – operating productive and mutually beneficial partnerships with other 
organisations, individuals, community groups and businesses. 
 

 Ambitious – focussed relentlessly on the quality of the offer, with the skills, knowledge and 
confidence to recognise, promote and support local performers, and 
 

 Confident – enthusiastically promoting Peterborough.   

46



 
 

Culture Strategy 2015 - 2020 
 

13 
 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  OUR PRIORITIES  

 

47



 
 

Culture Strategy 2015 - 2020 
 

14 
 

Priority 1: More people, more often – increasing participation in and 

enjoyment of cultural activities  

 
Cultural activities can enrich people’s quality of life, offering enjoyment and self-fulfillment, and 
opportunities to share experiences with others, helping to build and maintain a strong and 
cohesive society. 

Participation in culture plays an important part in providing people with positive activities and 
transferable skills. It is also vital in ensuring the health and wellbeing of our citizens.  

Peterborough is a vibrant, diverse, fast-growing and youthful city, which makes it an exciting 
place to live.  The city’s diversity is vitally important to the people who live and work here.  

Participation levels are currently low compared to national benchmarks, reflecting both the 
socio-economic status of the city population and the lack of cultural infrastructure both inside 
and outside the city centre.  

However, Peterborough’s cultural offer has gained considerable momentum in recent years 
and there is now  an  opportunity to make a real difference and effect positive change through 
culture, through diverse and dynamic programming from Vivacity to National Portfolio 
Organisations and local groups, delivering high quality programmes and working with the 
community and arts practitioners to develop and enhance skills.  

The Peterborough Presents programme aims to increase participation in cultural activity by 
providing locally relevant activities and programmes in a range of both traditional and non-
traditional locations, as well as developing the capacity of the city’s participatory culture and 
voluntary sectors.  

Peterborough needs to attract audiences that actively engage with, create and shape events.  
This will be delivered through a combination of better programming, home-grown productions 
and using national tours to bring nationally significant work and productions to Peterborough.  

Participation is also about communication. It is vital that all partners help communicate the 
breadth of cultural activities available, not simply their own, so that everyone knows what is on 
offer.  

The youthful and diverse population are enthusiastic users of digital technologies and with the 
city’s investment in high speed fibre infrastructure, new delivery and engagement mechanisms 
can be exploited for the benefit of culture in the city.  In a city such as Peterborough, access 
to different forms of culture relevant to the local population is important and will help increase 
the number of people taking part in cultural activities. 

 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

48



 
 

Culture Strategy 2015 - 2020 
 

15 
 

Peterborough City Council is committed to creative engagement and participation across all 
areas in Peterborough – involving people to enable them to make their own decisions about 
what excites them, and to ensure that the cultural offer is relevant to local people.  
 
Peterborough has a range of excellent cultural institutions and programmes which residents 
can enjoy. However, many residents would like to engage more in cultural activities but 
encounter a range of barriers including time, transport, price, availability of information and 
familiarity.  

What will be done  

 

 Work with internal departments, such as city operations, Travel Choice and Children’s 

Services to sustain and extend engagement through service and partnerships. 

 Work with our strategic partners, Vivacity and Metal, to sustain and extend engagement. 

 Support the development of inclusive and inspiring programmes within Peterborough city 

centre and the surrounding wards and villages. 

 Support targeted programmes such as Peterborough Presents, aimed at priority groups and 

prioritised engagement.  

 Promotion and development of events programmes for the city and development of the 

night time economy and activity; celebrating and making visible that Peterborough is a 

diverse and culturally rich city. 

 Develop the role that culture plays as integral part of wellbeing, especially in combatting 

physical and mental health issues. 

  

What will be achieved 

 

 Increased participation with a range of audiences, especially among young people, the 

elderly, diverse communities and voluntary-sector cultural organisations. 

 

 Increased use of public spaces for cultural activity.  

 

  Collaboration within and across the city which enables groups and organisations to grow.  

 

 Cultural leaders across the sector are open to ideas and facilitate others through creative 

networks. 

 

 A greater understanding of and confidence in  Peterborough’s potential to be  a creative 

city recognised as both active and vibrant  

 

 Increased membership of cultural and voluntary organisations.  

 

 

49



 
 

Culture Strategy 2015 - 2020 
 

16 
 

Priority 2: Developing, retaining and attracting people with talent  

 
Local people value the opportunity to make a contribution through engaging in cultural 
opportunities. These are beneficial in developing individuals’ confidence and transferable skills 
as well as creating strong communities. People who actively participate in cultural activity are 
more likely to take a role in shaping their communities in other areas too. More people could 
benefit from volunteering opportunity within the culture sector2. 
 
The Young Producers networks will create opportunities for young people to develop as 
cultural leaders.  Across the city, organisations will continue to support and promote the Arts 
Award as a way of recognising achievements and to increase opportunities to lead, manage 
and curate cultural activity.  
 
Opportunities will be provided through the Peterborough Presents and PHACE programmes 
as well as the Peterborough cultural partnership. The basic entitlement will be through schools 
and colleges, with additional programmes for those who do not or cannot access culture in 
these settings, and further support for children and young people with identified talent.  

 
Young people will be entitled to access quality cultural activities within and beyond the school 
curriculum, utilising opportunities such as the Peterborough Learning Partnership, Children’s 
University, where children receive a stamp for each hour of activity in order to work towards 
the national certificates, accessing a wider range of cultural activities and venues across the 
city. To provide this entitlement, a wide-ranging partnership between the relevant parts of the 
public, private, voluntary, faith and third sectors, as well as residents is required.   
 
In the past Peterborough has benefited from of number visiting national portfolio organisations 
working and delivering quality programmes in the city. After seven years Peterborough now 
has its own national portfolio organisation, Metal Culture. Metal is in permanent residence in 
Peterborough and is integrating its offer with other city-based providers. This initiative seeks 
to maximise local resources and build capacity in the cultural sector.  
 
Both Vivacity and Metal are key in attracting, developing and retaining cultural producers and 
programmers in the city. Programmes such as Community Bridge Builders, Connection–
Culture and Chamber of Culture are underway through the Peterborough Presents programme 
to deliver this priority. All areas of work intend to develop skills and confidence, producing 
sustainable models of delivery and cultural programmes.    
 
National partnerships within the heritage sectors, such as the strong collaborative work 
between Peterborough Museum and the Natural History Museum to deliver ‘Real World 
Science, are in place to  inspire young people to pursue further education and careers within 
the sector.  

There is a strongly held ambition for city to be regarded as a centre of excellence for heritage 
learning. The website www.peterboroughheritage.org will complement and enhance the 
existing materials on the Vivacity learning webpages ensuring that this aspect of culture is well-
reflected and represented throughout the city and nationally. 
 
 
 

                                                

2 The value of arts and culture to people and society, Arts Council England 2014 

50

http://www.peterboroughheritage.org/


 
 

Culture Strategy 2015 - 2020 
 

17 
 

Peterborough will develop opportunities for the next generation of cultural producers and 
practitioners. This will include innovative and imaginative programming, brokering and building 
new relationships between professionals and non-professionals and cultural organisations. 
This approach will create pathways through early years to higher education.  These projects 
will experiment with programmes, locations and forms, and set ambitious targets for increasing 
levels of participation, both in numbers and levels of activity. There will be new opportunities 
to engender excellence, to develop talent and retain it.  

What will be done  

 

 Working with learning partners across the city to support and encourage learning at all ages 

through culture.  

 Promoting the empowering role of informal learning in underpinning personal and 

community development, through reading, creative activity and cultural experiences.  

 Supporting continuing professional development activities for cultural producers and 

programmers, through programmes such as Peterborough Presents, cultural producers 

networks and Peterborough cultural partnership  

 Continued support and celebrating excellence through the Arts Award and the Children’s 

University  

 Support for the development of phase two of the music hub and music partnership to 

support young people through music pathways  

 Support  for local and national cultural programmes which inspire cultural development  

 

What will be achieved  

 A current and relevant cultural offer to all schools. 

 

 Opportunities for young people to develop skills and to stay or return to the city. 

 

 Sharing of knowledge and experience, development of skills within the city.  

 

 Opportunities to develop and enhance skills, an increase in the number of creative courses 

offered in Peterborough. 

 

 Easily accessed and understood signposts for creative practitioners in the city. 

 

 The development of cultural hubs. 

 

 An increase in the numbers of national portfolio organisations working and staying in 

Peterborough. 

 

 A Peterborough based National Portfolio Organisation. 

 

51



 
 

Culture Strategy 2015 - 2020 
 

18 
 

Priority 3: Places to go and things to do – making the best use of our 

city spaces  

 
Peterborough is an historic city ringed by new town development. It is essential that cultural 
services are developed in order to maintain and increase the vitality of the city to ensure 
that growth remains a strength. 

 
One of the ambitions for this strategy is to use culture to reconnect the satellite settlements 
to the city, both physically and emotionally.  Public space, infused with cultural resources will 
become the meeting points, and places to showcase and enjoy great art and cultural activity, 
drawing from the city’s many and diverse communities. Research shows that people are 
increasingly going to lead more isolated lives, with many working from home and/or living 
alone. Opportunities to meet in a variety of public spaces and commercial premises for a wide 
variety of purposes will become increasingly important and valuable. 
 
Peterborough has a number of venues and facilities focused in the city centre which produce 
and offer excellent work and programmes, however the city does not have the venues or 
facilities which would be associated with cities of a similar size. Peterborough does not have 
a cultural quarter like many other comparable cities.  In order to improve access to cultural 
activities, Peterborough needs to improve or open up access to cultural facilities in the city 
centre and the surrounding Wards, delivering programmes at the neighborhood level, using 
facilities in the community and vacant properties. 
 
Key organisations across the city play a valuable role in running and programming cultural 
venues. Many are supported through volunteers and membership. Opportunities need to be 
given to enable people, independently, to find and use spaces within the city that are not 
established venues. The city needs to map current spaces, both commercial and vacant, and 
produce a plan for the city. This will provide a sign post for city spaces where people can broker 
activity.  
 
Broadening access to spaces within the city for cultural activities will have a direct impact on 
the city’s economy. The cultural offer within the city is an integral part of the success of 
Peterborough’s tourism; a reason for people to come and to stay. It is also a key contributor to 
the quality of life that is important both in retaining existing business and attracting new 
employers and investors.  
 
Commercial events and visible, free, cultural programmes across the city have a key role to 
play at the best of times. However, in times of recession, this role is arguably even more 
important. 
  
 
 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

 
 

52



 
 

Culture Strategy 2015 - 2020 
 

19 
 

Peterborough’s public spaces will benefit from a stronger cultural infrastructure brought about 
through the development of networks and relationships, across public realm works and open 
spaces within the city. The aim is to support high quality programming and the production of 
new work through accessing and utilising under used spaces across the city. 

What will be done  

 

 Review all our community assets, including school buildings and libraries to understand 

how and where cultural activity can be accessed and supported, exploring the potential for 

creating a cultural quarter. 

 

 Support creative activities – in the community, in libraries, in the museum,  in the cathedral, 

in our parks and open spaces. 

 

 Highlight the role of culture in relevant investment strategies such as the visitor economy 

strategy.  

 

 Mapping and utilisation of spaces within the city for cultural activity, exploiting existing 

assets, creating an online directory of venues and spaces, where people can broker/book 

activities and space (guidance/signposting). 

 

 Work with partners to develop and strengthen the communication of  initiatives for the city’s 

cultural calendar (including through the  idea 1 website for events promotion) – to residents, 

businesses, visitors 

 

 Continue to use current resources effectively to support cultural provision for the city; 

maintaining and developing the quality, freshness and uniqueness of programmes 

 

 Highlight and increase usage of the unique and irreplaceable resources that we have in 

the city, from historic buildings and landscapes, to green spaces and environmental assets. 

What will be achieved 

 

 A ‘ cultural spaces’ policy for council assets, identifying and seeking to use spaces when 

they are vacant   

 A space plan of the city, covering all current assets, both publically owned  and commercial 

 Clear guidance and signposting on how to book public space 

 Increased use of current city assets, from the public, private and third sector venues    

 Development of community assets to increase access to joined up services 

 Growth of  cultural companies resident in the city 

 The development and use of school facilities for community use 

   Creating new audience to feed demand for activity 
 
 

 

53



 
 

Culture Strategy 2015 - 2020 
 

20 
 

  

  

  

  

  

  

   

  MOVING FORWARD:  
   KEEPING ON TRACK  
  

 

54



 
 

Culture Strategy 2015 - 2020 
 

21 
 

 
The cultural strategy recognises the significance of the cultural and creative sectors in making 
Peterborough a vibrant, culturally and economically healthy city, and advocates continued 
support in culture and cultural activities. The strategy also addresses concerns facing the 
sector and considers how to maximise opportunities for the cultural life of Peterborough to 
flourish. 

Peterborough City Council is well placed to lead the development of the strategy and to 
oversee its delivery. However, the diverse nature and scope of the cultural sector is such that 
a range of other organisations will be central to ensuring that there is full engagement in the 
process. This is particularly the case in Peterborough where the city council already has 
predominantly a commissioning role and operates via a network of funded delivery partners 

The development of this strategy was overseen by the cultural strategy steering group. This 
successful partnership approach and subsequent consultation on the strategy, suggests the 
need for a small executive group informed by and interconnected with a wider consultative 
forum. It is therefore proposed to establish a core delivery group – Culture Peterborough – 
supported and informed by wider creative forums, such as Peterborough Presents, Creative 
Peterborough, Peterborough cultural partners, Opportunity Peterborough and Peterborough 
learning partners. Together, this creative alliance of organisations, individuals and artists will 
take ownership of the strategy and oversee its delivery.  

The consortium will be built around the major cultural institutions in the city. The group will be 
an open and relatively free-form group that has seamless links with the wider cultural sector. 
Specifically, the group will look at ways of involving the commercial and private sector within 
the consortium.  

 
The proposed functions of Culture Peterborough will include:  

 

 Inform, own and oversee the delivery of this strategy;  
 

 Provide a voice for the sector;  
 

 Networking, lobbying and information-sharing;  
 

 Seek resources to deliver the strategy;  
 

 Make strategic connections with and contribute to the Local Enterprise Partnership 
  

 Advise on selected projects and programmes;  
 

 Encourage collaboration in the sector;  
 

 Monitor progress on the strategy and other key cultural projects.  

 
 
 
 
 
 

55



 
 

Culture Strategy 2015 - 2020 
 

22 
 

 
The city council will play a central role in the culture Peterborough group and will support 
the development of the Forum. The specific priorities for the Council will include:  
 

 Advocating the importance of culture;  
 

 Supporting partnership working;  
 

 Delivering selected events and programmes;  
 

 Commissioning and funding key programmes and events;  
 

 Linking culture to other key city priorities;  
 

 Liaising with national and regional cultural bodies on behalf of the city.  
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

56



 
 

Culture Strategy 2015 - 2020 
 

23 
 

 

 

Delivering the strategy  

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

The budget challenge  

The culture and the creative sector is not immune from the impact of the unprecedented public 
spending deficit. Work is already underway between the city council and the sector to identify 
responses to the challenges ahead.   

In summary, the approach will include:  

 Encouraging greater collaboration and links between organisations, artists, programmes 
and projects. Changes in school and NHS structures could provide opportunities for 
cultural agencies to come together to deliver a single, coordinated package of cultural 
activity.  
 

 Driving down costs through shared services; smarter procurement, review of delivery 
structures, and where possible engagement of volunteers. 
 

 

 Supporting organisations to access funding and to develop the skills required for 
sustainability. This will aim to ensure that Peterborough gets its fair share of future grant 
funding.    

 

Action Planning  

 

Progress on delivering the strategy will be done in three ways:  

 Open annual review involving the sector and wider public each year;  
 

 Annual action plan agreed by March of each year. This will set out what needs to be 
done, by whom and by when; 

 

 Agree a set of indicators which measure strategic progress (e.g. participation levels) and 
also measure progress of key programmes and projects. The indicators will also take 
account of the objectives and outcomes set by key partners such as Arts Council 
England. As national performance indicators disappear, a key measure of success will 
be customer, citizen and tourist satisfaction with the city’s cultural programmes.   

57



This page is intentionally left blank

58



COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM No. 10 

4 MARCH 2015 PUBLIC REPORT

RECORD OF EXECUTIVE DECISIONS MADE SINCE THE LAST MEETING

1. DECISIONS FROM CABINET MEETING HELD ON 2 FEBRUARY 2015

A1139 FLETTON PARKWAY JUNCTION 17 A1(M) TO JUNCTION 2 ROAD WIDENING 
SCHEME, CONTAMINATION AND DRAINAGE ISSUES 

Cabinet received a report from the Cabinet Member for Planning and Housing Services.

The report sought approval for the completion of the A1139 Fletton Parkway junction 
17(A1M) to junction 2 road widening scheme and further sought approval for virements to 
cover the increased cost of the scheme. The report also provided background information 
explaining the reasons why the cost of delivering the scheme had increased from the 
original target cost.

Cabinet considered the report and RESOLVED to:

1. Approve Balfour Beatty to undertake the additional works necessary to complete the 
A1139 junction 17 A1(M) – junction 2 widening scheme; and

2. Authorise the virement of £4.502m to the project budget from the various budgets 
detailed within the report.

ANNUAL AUDIT LETTER 2013/14

Cabinet received a report following a referral from the Council’s External Auditor 
(PriceWaterhouseCoopers).

The purpose of the report was for Cabinet to consider and respond to the Annual Audit 
Letter for 2013/14, prepared jointly by the Council’s external auditors 
PriceWaterhouseCoopers (PwC).

Cabinet considered the report and RESOLVED:

To approve the Annual Audit Letter for the financial year 2013/14.

2. DECISIONS FROM CABINET MEETING HELD ON 23 FEBRUARY 2015
 
PETERBOROUGH CULTURE STRATEGY 2015-2020

Cabinet received a report from the Cabinet Member for City Centre Management and 
Tourism.

Culture and Leisure Services were long established priorities of the Council. The Council 
published a cultural strategy five years ago to deliver its priorities up to 2014. 

 Recognising the need to take a fresh look at its approach and priorities to develop a new 
culture strategy, the Council had developed a refreshed strategy, as set out within the 
document ‘Peterborough Culture Strategy 2015-2020’.

59



Cabinet considered the report and RESOLVED:

To approve the Peterborough Culture Strategy 2015-2020 and to recommend its adoption to 
Council.

FUTURE OF WIND AND SOLAR PROJECTS 

Cabinet received a report which followed an internal review by officers and consideration by 
the Cabinet Member.

The purpose of the report was to consider the way forward in respect of the two wind and 
three ground mounted solar PV projects namely:

 Farms of Newborough (wind and solar)
 Morris Fen (wind and solar)
 America Farm (solar only)

In October 2014, it was stated that Cabinet would receive a report that the plans for wind 
and solar schemes at Newborough Farm and Morris Fen in Thorney were to be ceased. 
Final evaluations were currently taking place to determine whether the third scheme at 
America Farm should progress. 

Cabinet considered the report and RESOLVED:

1. To approve the cessation of the solar/wind projects at the farms of Newborough and 
Morris Fen and that the two planning applications be withdrawn;

2. That in respect of America Farm, no further action is to be taken due to the insufficient 
information available at this stage; and

3. That in line with the Council’s budget strategy, all cost be written off on the basis of a 
worst case scenario that the remaining scheme does not proceed.

BUDGET 2015/16 AND MEDIUM TERM FINANCIAL STRATEGY (MTFS) 2024/25

Cabinet received a report which formed part of the Council’s formal budget process set out 
within the constitution and legislative requirements to set a balanced budget for 2015/16 
and medium term financial strategy to 2024/25.

The purpose of the report was to recommend to Council budget proposals for 2015/16 
through to 2024/25, in line with the final local government finance settlement for 2015/16 
and in advance of some Department for Education specific grants being finalised. The draft 
Medium Term Financial Strategy (MTFS) was presented during the Cabinet meeting of 19 
January and, subject to updated information contained within the report, was the basis for 
Cabinet to recommend the budget for approval by Council. Attached to the report were the 
relevant documents Cabinet referred to within the report.

The report also provided an update on budget consultation responses received so far, 
recognising that that the consultation remained open until 2 March and that some meetings 
with key stakeholder groups were still to take place. 

Cabinet considered the report and RESOLVED to:

1. Note the updates on the budget since the Cabinet’s meeting on 19 January including: 
the announcement of the final Local Government Finance Settlement, the Council 
decision on 28 January of the Council Tax Support Scheme and the impact on the tax 
base.

2. Have regard to the consultation feedback received to date and statutory advice detailed 
in the report when determining the budget recommendations, noting that consultation 

60



remains open and further update will be provided at the Cabinet meeting and to the 
Council meeting.

3. Agree the budget proposals in the report, which include the updates detailed in 
paragraph 4.1 and additional proposals as agreed at the meeting, be approved and 
recommended to Council on 4 March 2015, namely:

a) The budget is set in the context of council priorities;
b) The budget for 2015/16 takes note of the budget monitoring position for 2014/15;
c) The revenue budget for 2015/16 and proposed cash limits for 2016/17 to 2024/25 

(including investment and savings proposals);
d) The capital programme for 2015/16 and proposed cash limits to 2024/25 and 

associated capital strategy, treasury management strategy and asset 
management plan;

e) A council tax freeze in 2015/16 with indicative increases for planning purposes of 
2% for 2016/17 to 2024/25;

f)  That education funding is spent at the level of funding resources available to both 
schools and the council in 2015/16 and future estimates to 2024/25;

g) The budget is supported adequately with reserves, provisions and robust budget 
estimates set in the context of the risks outlined in the report;

h) The proposals for setting fees and charges for 2015/16;
I)  To allocate £70,000 from the risk management contingency for 2015/16 to enable 

the library proposals to be amended to allow a staff presence at all times within 
the larger libraries across the city, and to assist with the implementation plans 
(noting that Cabinet will not make a final decision on library options until their 
meeting of 20thMarch);

J)  To increase the capital sum for Street Cleansing by£200,000 in order to enable 
further investment into making services more efficient and to help keep our city 
clean; with the capital financing costs in 2015/16 of £4k being met from the risk 
management contingency, and

K)  To maintain the risk management contingency at a minimum level of £500,000.

4. Note the approved and submitted declaration of the deficit on the Collection Fund with 
regards to business rates for 2014/15 and the business rates forecast for 2015/16.

5. Approve the discretionary retail relief scheme, the discretionary reoccupation relief 
scheme and the transitional relief scheme for businesses for 2015/16; and

6. Have regard for the continuing uncertainty of national public finances and that it may 
become necessary to amend the budget in year if there are national changes to public 
spending following the general election in May.

OUTCOME OF PETITIONS

Cabinet received a report following the presentation of petitions to Full Council on 28 
January 2015.

The purpose of the report was to update Cabinet on the progress being made in response 
to petitions.

Cabinet considered the report and RESOLVED:

To note the actions taken in respect of petitions presented to Council (as detailed below).

i. Petition relating to Fulbridge Road Allotments

This petition was presented to Council on 28 January 2015 by Councillor Julia Davidson 
on behalf of Werrington Allotments Association, the purpose being to obtain the following 
objectives:

61



1. To obtain assistance from Peterborough City Council in making the fences and gates 
along the access road to the site more secure following a spate of thefts and acts of 
vandalism; and

2. To obtain assistance from Peterborough City Council in making the fencing and gate 
at the rear of the site more secure as it has fallen into disrepair and unauthorised 
access is being gained by intruders.

Amey’s Partnership Manager responded stating that “I can confirm that both Peterborough 
City Council and Amey have been actively engaged with the self-managed allotment, to 
date we have helped fund the new locks that have been installed to replace the old 
combination code ones, we have also funded further wire mesh to the rear fence of the 
allotment to prevent intruders being able to climb over the old wooden frame.

The main fence around the access road is in a good state of repair and fully secures the 
site, we have addressed the issues with the locks and are now looking at how we can 
further help secure the rear area. We have also as you are aware been in contact with the 
Police who have offered further advice and help where possible.

There has also been a meeting onsite to discuss the future options of the allotment taking 
on part of the land to the rear where most of the intruders are gaining entry. We have now 
received quotes to move and replace the existing fence and to fence off the full rear area 
around the shrub belt, the initial quotes for this work are £17,893. This has been 
communicated back for further discussion and we are looking at ways in which the 
allotment association can do some of the work to bring down costs’.

3. CALL-IN BY SCRUTINY COMMITTEE OR COMMISSION

Since the publication of the previous report to Council, the call-in mechanism has been 
invoked twice. 

i.   This was in respect of the decision taken by Cabinet on 19 January 2015 relating to 
‘Strategic Partnership between Peterborough City Council and AVIC International 
Corporation (UK) Ltd’. The call-in request was considered by the Sustainable Growth 
and Environment Capital Scrutiny Committee on 3 February 2015. Following 
consideration of the reasons stated on the request for call-in and the response to the 
call-in, the Committee did not agree to the call-in of this decision on any of the reasons 
stated. 

Under the Overview and Scrutiny Procedure Rules in the Council's Constitution (Part 4, 
Section 8, and paragraph 13), implementation of the decision would take immediate 
effect.

ii.   This was in respect of the decision taken by Cabinet on 2 February 2015 relating to 
‘A1139 Fletton Parkway Junction 17 A1(M) to Junction 2 road widening scheme, 
contamination and drainage issues – JAN15/CAB/11’. The call-in request was 
considered by the Sustainable Growth and Environment Capital Scrutiny Committee on 
16 February 2015. Following consideration of the reasons stated on the request for call-
in and the response to the call-in, the Committee did not agree to the call-in of this 
decision on any of the reasons stated. 

Under the Overview and Scrutiny Procedure Rules in the Council's Constitution (Part 4, 
Section 8, and paragraph 13), implementation of the decision would take immediate 
effect, however the following recommendation was also made:

That a report be brought back to the Committee at the beginning of the next municipal 
year which provides a full review of the Fletton Parkway Scheme to include the following 
information:

62



i. The different procurement options for highway contracts including fixed price and 
target cost contracts.

ii. Details of the different stages of delivery of major highway schemes, using the Fletton 
Parkway Junction 17-2 scheme as an example.

4. SPECIAL URGENCY AND WAIVE OF CALL-IN PROVISIONS

Since the publication of the previous report to Council, the urgency provisions have not 
been invoked.

5. CABINET MEMBER DECISIONS 

CABINET 
MEMBER AND 
DATE OF 
DECISION

REFERENCE DECISION TAKEN 

Councillor 
Gavin Elsey

26 January 
2015

JAN15/CMDN/09 Coroner Shared Service with Cambridgeshire 
County Council

The Cabinet Member agreed the secondment of a 
Cambridgeshire County Council Coroner’s Officer to the 
Coroner’s Service of Peterborough.

Councillor 
Gavin Elsey

26 January 
2015

JAN15/CMDN/10 Proposals for the Future Coroners Service

The Cabinet Member approved:

1) The business case for the merger of Peterborough 
and Cambridgeshire’s coronial areas to be combined 
into a single coronial area by the end of April 2015, 

2) The application to the Ministry of Justice from 
Cambridgeshire County Council and Peterborough 
City Council to consider making on order for a single 
coronial area on the grounds of the business case; 
and

3) The Council to enter into discussions with CCC to 
explore a shared support service for the Council’s 
coroner’s office; and

4) That delegated authority be given to the Director of 
Governance, in consultation with the Cabinet 
Member for Street Scene, Waste Management and 
Communications, to agree the terms of a shared 
support services agreement with CCC, provided it is 
beneficial to the Council. 

Councillor Peter 
Hiller

6 February 
2015

FEB15/CMDN/13 The Mobile Homes Act 2013 Fees Policy

The Cabinet Member authorised a period of 8 weeks for 
public consultation in relation to a Fees Policy 
document, including utilising the option to calculate 
annual fees on a banding basis, and the exemption of 
certain sites from its annual fee charge.

63



Councillor Peter 
Hiller

12 February 
2015

FEB15/CMDN/14 Award of Grant to the Environment Agency

The Cabinet Member approved the award of a grant of 
£34,000 to the Environment Agency (‘the Agency’) for 
them to use in delivering workstream one of the 
Werrington Brook Improvements Programme. The 
Agency is leading workstream one.

Councillor Lucia 
Serluca

23 February 
2015

FEB15/CMDN/15 Provision of CCTV Services 
The Cabinet Member approved the execution of a 
service agreement between Peterborough City Council 
and Cross Keys Homes Limited for the provision of 
CCTV services to Cross Keys Homes Limited by the 
Council for which the Council receives payment.

64



COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM No. 12

4 MARCH 2015 PUBLIC REPORT

MOTIONS ON NOTICE

The following notices of motion have been received in accordance with the Council’s Standing Order 
13.1:

1. Motion from Councillor John Fox

i. That this Council notes with concern that the Department for Transport has revealed 
that over the last year 164 accidents involving mobility scooters were recorded, of 
which:

 five drivers were killed and a further 17 suffered serious injuries;
 another 102 people suffered slight injuries, official figures have revealed; and
 nine more people who were not the driver were seriously injured.

ii. That the Leader be requested to write to the City’s MPs asking them to contact Richard 
Goodwill, the Transport Minister, to express concern at the danger posed by the 
growing number of mobility scooters and to support the call by Alison Seabeck, MP for 
Plymouth Moor View, for the introduction of compulsory training; and

iii. That the Cabinet look into the feasibility of working with disability groups within the City 
to implement mobility scooter training in Peterborough on a voluntary basis until it 
becomes law.

2. Motion from Councillor Richard Ferris

That in the interests of transparent and open decision-making, and in order to restore 
public confidence, this Council agrees to set up a Task & Finish Group to develop an 
ethical investment and procurement policy, and report back before the end of October 
2015.

3. Motion from Councillor Mohammed Nadeem

1. That this Council notes:

(a) That the National Database and Registration Authority of Pakistan (NADRA) is 
offering those of the Pakistani community living abroad ID Cards, which offer 
valuable benefits and incentives to the card holder. Eligibility includes not just 
Pakistani citizens living abroad but also the children of those who hold Pakistani 
nationality or dual nationality. It is a replacement for the overseas Pakistani/Dual 
Nationality Passport. The ID Cards were initially launched on 10th March 2000 in 
Islamabad Pakistan. The ID Card lasts over a 5 or 10 year period  and grants the 

65



holder direct entry to Pakistan without the need to apply through the Visa system, 
which is a very long winded and expensive process, giving the cardholder peace of 
mind when travelling in emergency cases back to Pakistan. NADRA have overseas 
offices in UK, London and Birmingham Offices Cover the Peterborough Remit.

(b) That there are currently around 1500 citizens who are waiting to renew their card or 
apply for a new card but the Pakistan High Commission in London & Birmingham 
are short staffed and obtaining an appointment from them to renew/apply for a card 
is almost impossible. On many occasions residents have been to London and 
Birmingham and returned with only stress and heartache, as they have spent all 
day there, often from a 04:00 in the morning start, and have  been turned 
away being told that no appointments are available. NADRA serve 100 
appointments a day Mon - Fri and priority is given to Birmingham Citizens. 
However, Nadra did used to hold (Mobile Registration Team (MRT)  surgeries in 
Peterborough, where their team would process about 250 applications on a full 
surgery, which was was very helpful and benefited all residents especially the 
elderly and children. NADRA have suddenly stopped holding regular surgeries, 
which has caused many problems to the residents of Peterborough as not everyone 
can travel the distance to their main offices and the appointments being offered are 
too far ahead. Peterborough residents wishing to use this service include those who 
are elderly, disabled, have mental health issues or are single mothers that require 
priority and this is causing a huge problem and strain for those of our community 
that need this service. 

2. That this Council recommends that the Chief Executive or the Leader to write to the 
Pakistan High Commission asking that it addresses the short staffing issue at NADRA 
and requests that monthly surgeries to deliver this service be resumed

66



COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM No. 13(a)

4 MARCH 2015 PUBLIC REPORT

PETERBOROUGH CITY COUNCIL PAY POLICY STATEMENT FOR 2015/16

R E C O M M E N D A T I O N S

FROM :  Director of Governance 

That Council adopts the Pay Policy Statement for 2015/16, which is appended to this report.

1. PURPOSE & REASON FOR THE REPORT

1.1 Council is required by the Localism Act 2011 to approve the Pay Policy 
Statement for each financial year.  This report asks council to approve the 
Pay Policy Statement for 2015/16. 

2. BACKGROUND TO PAY POLICY STATEMENT 2015/16

2.1 The Localism Act (the Act) requires the council to sets out it’s policy for the 
financial year relating to the;

 remuneration of its chief officers, 
 the remuneration of its lowest paid employees and 
 the relationship between the remuneration of its chief officers and its 

employees who are not chief officers.

2.2 The Act contains specific items that must be included in the Pay Policy, and 
the statement recommended to council at Appendix 1 is compliant with those 
requirements. It has also been drafted having regard to the guidance 
provided by the Department of Communities and Local Government (DCLG) 
“Openness and accountability in local pay: Guidance under section 40 of the 
Localism Act”

3. KEY CHANGES TO PAY POLICY STATEMENT FOR 2015/16

3.1 The pay policy codifies the approach to remuneration that has already been 
agreed by Employment Committee.

3.2 In line with recent legislation the policy now states that in the case of transfers 
in to the council the contractual terms and conditions of the employees will be 
static at the point of transfer.  This will apply in all cases excluding those 
where the council has the possibility of participating in the negotiation process 
of such collective agreements concluded after the date of the transfer.  This 
will mean that any pay award negotiated after transfer will not be paid 
(providing the council had no possibility of participating in the negotiation 
process).

3.3 Government guidance states that “full council should be offered the 
opportunity to vote before large salary packages are offered in respect of a 
new appointment.  The Secretary of State considers that £100,000 is the right 
level for that threshold to be set.”  The policy has been amended to state that 
“Full Council is responsible for approving salary grades of £100,000 or more 

67



in respect of a new appointment.   The Employment Committee, under its 
delegated powers will determine the salary to be paid within the grade 
approved by Council”.  Full Council is responsible for approving severance 
packages beyond £100,000 for staff leaving the organisation.  

3.4 As part of the phase two budget proposals the council is proposing to pay a 
‘Peterborough Living Wage’ to the lowest paid employees.  The minimum rate 
payable per hour will be £7.85.  This will also be applied in community 
schools and recommended to Voluntary Aided/Foundation schools and City 
College.

4. IMPLICATIONS OF THE PAY POLICY STATEMENT 2015/16

4.1 Financial Implications 

4.1.1 There are no specific financial implications to the approval of the Pay Policy 
Statement. The contents of the Statement are consistent with the current 
approach to remuneration as agreed with Employment Committee.   

4.1.2 The current remuneration of employees is accounted for in the 2015/16 
budget proposals. 

4.2 Legal & Human Resource Implications 

4.2.1 It is a requirement of the Localism Act 2011 that the council must approve a 
Pay Policy Statement. Once the Pay Policy Statement is passed, all 
decisions relating to remuneration must be made in accordance with it. 

4.2.2 As soon as practicable after approving or amending its Pay Policy Statement 
the council must publish it in such manner as it thinks fit, which must include 
publication on the authority’s website

4.3 Equalities Implications

4.3.1 The Council’s Pay Policy is consistent with its obligations as an employer to 
comply with equality duties. It ensures that all employees are rewarded fairly 
and objectively, without discrimination, for the work that they undertake on 
behalf of the council, and provides an objective mechanism to review pay 
dispersal throughout the council.

5. BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS

Department of Communities and Local Government (DCLG) guidance 
“Openness and accountability in local pay: Guidance under section 40 of the 
Localism Act” February 2013.

Hutton Review of Fair Pay in the Public Sector: Final Report March 2011

6. APPENDICES

 Appendix 1: Pay Policy Statement 2015/16

68



V2 100215

 APPENDIX 1

PAY POLICY STATEMENT FOR 2015/16

1. Purpose of the Policy

1.1 The council is required by ss38 to 43 of the Localism Act 2011 to produce an 
annual pay policy statement. It must be approved by Full Council each year, 
and must then be published on the council's website.

1.2 The statement sets out the council’s policy with regard to:

 The remuneration of chief officers (as defined in 4.1);

 The remuneration of the lowest paid employees (as defined in 6.2); and

 The relationship between chief officers’ remuneration and that of officers’ 
(who are not chief officers). 

1.3 Remuneration includes salary or payment under a contract for services, 
expenses, bonuses, performance related pay and severance payments. 

1.4 The objectives of this policy are:

1.4.1 To set remuneration at a level sufficient to attract and retain 
adequately experienced, trained and qualified individuals to deliver the 
council’s priorities, 

1.4.2 To reflect fairness and equality of opportunity, and

1.4.3 To set out the council’s approach to remuneration in a fair and 
transparent manner. 

1.5 The Council has recently undertaken a senior management reorganisation 
which came into effect on 2nd March 2015. The new structure is set out in this 
policy. However, it should be noted that the information included in 
paragraphs 6 and 8 is based upon the pay data available at the time of print 
(1 February 2015). 

2. Pay Framework

2.1 The Council’s main pay framework was implemented in April 2007 in line with 
national joint council (NJC) guidance, with the grade for each role being 
determined by a job evaluation process. This followed a national requirement 
for all local authorities, and a number of other public sector employers, to 
review their pay and grading frameworks to ensure fair and consistent 
practice for different groups of workers with the same employer.  As part of 
this the council determined a local pay framework for NJC posts, up to spinal 
column point 60. 

2.2 In exceptional circumstances, basic pay for any officer may be supplemented 
by a market supplement if market evidence on demand for these skills 
supports it.  The process and terms of these payments is clearly detailed 
within the council’s Market Supplement policy.  

H
um

an
 R

es
ou

rc
es

69



V2 100215

2.3 This pay policy statement does not relate to:

 staff of local authority schools 

 contractors 

 companies wholly or partially owned by the council

 the receipt or distribution of any payments received by the Chief 
Executive in her role as Returning Officer

3. Pay Awards

3.1 The council’s policy on pay awards for all employees, including chief officers, 
has been to follow national negotiations. During 2014 the following pay 
awards were implemented:

Terms and Conditions 
type

Increase awarded Date effective

Joint Negotiating 
Committee for Chief 
Officers

2% on salaries of 
£99,999 or less at 31 
December 2014.  The 
pay award did not 
apply to the first 
£99,999 of salaries of 
£100,000 or more.

1 January 2015.  
Notification was not 
received until February 
2015.

National Joint Council 
Single Status

Variable % Non-consolidated 
payment paid in 
December 2014 and 
due to be paid in April 
2015 plus percentage 
increase of at least 
2.2% payable from 1 
January 2015 (was due 
on 1 April 2014)

NHS Spinal column point 
increase to those who 
had not reached the 
top of their grade only.  
No pay award paid.

Variable dates 
depending on 
anniversary date of job 
holder.

Youth & Community 
JNC

zero Last pay award was 
1% on 01 September 
2013

Soulbury zero Last pay award was 
1% on 01 September 
2013

70



V2 100215

3.2 Where staff have been transferred in to the council their contractual terms 
and conditions will be static at the point of transfer.  This will apply in all 
cases excluding those where the council has the possibility of participating in 
the negotiation process of such collective agreements concluded after the 
date of the transfer.  This will mean that any pay award negotiated after 
transfer will not be paid (providing the council had no possibility of 
participating in the negotiation process).

3.3 There is incremental progression for NJC evaluated posts where increments 
are paid in accordance with agreed council policy, usually on an annual basis. 
Incremental progression for NJC evaluated jobs is automatic within the pay 
range for the job, and takes place until the maximum incremental point within 
the pay range is achieved. Thereafter the employee is only eligible for any 
annual cost of living award negotiated by the appropriate bodies.

4. Definition of Chief Officer

4.1 As is required by the Localism Act, for the purpose of this policy, chief officers 
are defined as:

 Head of Paid Service (Chief Executive)

 Monitoring Officer (Director of Governance)

 s151 Officer (Corporate Director of Resources)

 Statutory Chief Officers Corporate Director: People & Communities and 
Director of Public Health.

 Non-Statutory Chief Officers: Corporate Director of Growth and 
Regeneration.  Any post that reports directly to the Chief Executive (other 
than administrative posts)

 Deputy Chief Officers: anyone who reports directly to a statutory or non-
statutory chief officer (other than administrative posts).

 Any self-employed individual engaged by the council in one of the 
categories above

A list of posts and officers included in this definition is attached at Appendix A. 

5. Policy relating to remuneration of Chief Officers 

5.1 Local government has changed radically; this council is no exception and 
many of our services are now provided externally. During 2013/14 senior 
manager pay scales were reviewed and the following parameters agreed by 
Employment Committee:-  

 Senior manager role profiles should be evaluated independently under Hay, 
which is the council’s chosen job evaluation system for senior managers.

 There will be seven pay bands going forward which are anchored at the 50th 
percentile (market median) and range between 10% below or 10% above this 
market anchor point.  Application of the council’s Market Supplement policy 
will be considered in cases where the market dictates a rate that is above the 
50th percentile and evidence is provided to support this. 

71



V2 100215

 Pay protection will be applied for those who see a reduction in their salary in 
accordance with the council’s existing Redundancy Policy pay protection 
arrangements.

 Salary upon appointment will be set in accordance with the Guidance 
Document on Setting Senior Manager Pay.

5.2 Full Council is responsible for approving the appointment of the Head of Paid 
Service (Chief Executive).  Full Council is responsible for confirming the 
dismissal of the Chief Executive, and for confirming the dismissal of the 
Solicitor to the Council (Director of Governance) or the Chief Finance Officer 
(Corporate Director of Resources) following the recommendation of such a 
dismissal by Employment Committee.  All Cabinet members have a right to 
object to the appointment or dismissal before the recommendation is 
implemented. 

5.3 Employment Committee is responsible for approving the appointment 
(including remuneration) or dismissal of all other Chief Officers and Deputy 
Chief Officers.  All Cabinet members have a right to object to the appointment 
or dismissal. 

5.4 Full Council is responsible for approving salary grades of £100,000 or more in 
respect of a new appointment.  The Employment Committee, under its 
delegated powers will determine the salary to be paid within the grade 
approved by Council.  Full Council is responsible for approving severance 
packages beyond £100,000 for staff leaving the organisation.  

5.5 There is currently no formal mechanism in place for Chief Officers to progress 
through the pay bandings.  Any increase previously paid was at the discretion 
of the Chief Executive and appropriate Cabinet Member, and linked to a 
change in responsibilities, or agreed on recruitment following an initial period 
in the role. A proposal on progression is being developed and will be 
discussed at Employment Committee during 2015.  The Chief Executive and 
Director in consultation with the relevant portfolio holder and the Corporate 
Director of Resources are authorised to amend and update the job 
descriptions of Directors, Assistant Directors and Heads of Service.  

5.6 Information relating to the remuneration of senior officers is published 
annually in the statement of accounts, and also in accordance with the 
Department of Communities and Local Government’s (DCLG) Transparency 
Code. The Council will continue to follow these requirements when 
determining disclosure for Chief Officers. Information in relation to payments 
made under a contract for services (for Chief Officers who are self-employed) 
will be published at the same time. 

6. Policy relating to remuneration of the council’s lowest paid employees 
UPDATED WHEN FIGURES AVAILABLE AFTER 1 FEBRUARY

6.1 The Localism Act requires the council to determine who its lowest paid 
employees are. It may adopt any definition which most appropriately fits local 
circumstances, providing it explains in the policy why that definition has been 
adopted.

6.2 For the purpose of this policy, the Council defines its lowest paid employees 
as those in the bottom 10% of employees by remuneration. As of 1st February 
2015 this covered 133 staff with a full time equivalent salary between £13,053 
and £17,437. The average remuneration package for those employees is in 

72



V2 100215

the region of £16,062.  For employees who work part-time, their salary is 
calculated pro rata to the full-time equivalent.  

6.3 The definition used to define the lowest paid workers is the same as the 
definition applied in the 2013/14 Pay Policy.  This definition has been selected 
because it captures a meaningful number of employees and avoids the 
distortions that might occur with a very small group, or the excessive 
averaging that would be required if a larger group was used, such as the 
lowest quartile. This definition has been agreed with the relevant trade 
unions.

6.4 Former council employees who have transferred to external contractors with 
whom the authority has contracted to perform services are excluded from this 
definition. 

6.5 The council is discussing the implementation of a Peterborough ‘living wage’ 
that would raise the basic pay of the council’s lowest paid workers to a 
minimum of £7.85 per hour.  

6.6 The pay award for Chief Officers was not received until 2 February 2015 and 
therefore has not been taken into account when calculating the amounts in 
paragraph 6 or 8.  

7. Policy relating to remuneration of all employees 

7.1 The council’s policy is to differentiate between remuneration of its employees 
by setting different levels of basic pay to reflect differences in responsibility, 
but not to differentiate on other allowances, benefits and payments it makes. 
The council has separate policies relating to travel and subsistence, 
redundancy, relocation, and other entitlements, and does not differentiate 
between chief officers and those who are not chief officers in respect of 
entitlement to these benefits. Similarly, all officers who work on elections are 
entitled to payment for specific roles such as count supervisor or count 
assistant, at rates agreed each year by the Returning Officer, and the rates 
agreed relate specifically to the election role undertaken, and not to the grade 
or employment status of the officer undertaking the role.

 7.2 Mobile telephones

Officers (including chief officers) are entitled to be provided with a mobile 
telephone or other personal data device if it is necessary to carry out their 
duties. Personal use is permitted, but must be reimbursed in accordance with 
council policies, so this is not classified as a benefit in kind for tax purposes.  

7.3 Policy on receipt of salary & pension

The Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) does not allow current 
employees to receive their pension at the same time as their salary unless it 
is under a flexible retirement arrangement.  New starters may join who are 
already in receipt of a pension from previous service in the LGPS or another 
pension provider.   It is also the council’s policy not to re-engage officers who 
have left the council on a redundancy basis, except in exceptional 
circumstances where the Chief Executive considers it necessary for continuity 
of an essential service. 

7.4 Enhancement of pension benefits

73



V2 100215

Most employees are eligible to join the Local Government Pension Scheme, 
which in certain circumstances provides for the exercise of discretion that 
allows retirement benefits to be enhanced. Pension regulations require the 
council to issue a written policy statement on how it will exercise the various 
discretions provided within the scheme, and this is published as a separate 
document entitled “Local Government Pension Scheme Discretionary Policy”. 
That policy was approved by Employment Committee in March 2010. Under 
the policy, the council will consider each case on its merits, but its usual 
policy is not to enhance benefits for any of its employees, with no distinction 
made between chief officers and those who are not chief officers. Different 
rules apply to those in the Teacher’s Pension Scheme and the NHS Pension 
Scheme.

7.5 Termination of employment

In relation to the termination of employment, the council will have due regard 
to the making of any appropriate payments where it is in the council’s best 
interests. Any such payments will be in accordance with contractual or 
statutory requirements and take into account the potential risk and liabilities to 
the council, including any legal costs, disruption to services, impact on 
employee relations and management time. The council will have specific 
regard to the legal requirements which apply to the termination of 
employment of the Head of Paid Service (Chief Executive) , the s151 Officer 
(Executive Director of Resources), and the Monitoring Officer (Director of 
Governance).

8. The relationship between the remuneration of the council’s chief officers and 
those who are not chief officers AVAILABLE AFTER 1 FEBRUARY

8.1 The Localism Act requires the council to state the relationship between the 
remuneration of chief officers and those who are not chief officers, and leaves 
the council the flexibility to determine how to express this. This was 
considered in the Hutton report, which was asked to explore the case for a 
fixed limit on pay dispersion in the public sector through a requirement that no 
public sector manager can earn more than 20 times the lowest paid person in 
the organisation. Hutton concluded that this was not helpful, and that the most 
appropriate metric is the top to median earnings.  However, the council would 
not expect that the remuneration of its highest paid officer would exceed 20 
times the remuneration paid to its lowest paid employee, except in 
exceptional circumstances, which must be specifically authorised by the 
Employment Committee and reviewed annually. The Chief Executive’s 
remuneration is currently 10.59 times the remuneration of the lowest paid 
employees. 

74



V2 100215

This is summarised below:
Feb 12 Feb 13 Feb 14 31 Jan 15

Chief Execs salary £170,175 £170,175 £170,175 £170,175
Lowest salary (using bottom 10%) £15,931 £15,011 £15,779 £16,062
Ratio 10.68 to 1 11.34 to 1 10.78 to 1 10.59 to 1

8.2 Hutton considered that the most appropriate metric to track the pay dispersion 
across the organisation is the multiple of the remuneration of the Chief 
Executive to the average remuneration of the organisation’s workforce.  The 
table below shows both the mean and the median average 

The current calculation and ratio is as follows:

Feb 14 31 Jan 15
Median Mean Median Mean

Chief Exec’s salary £170,175 £170,175 £170,175 £170,175
Average £27,323 £29,990 £27,913 £30,420
“pay multiple” ratio 6.41 to 1 5.67 to 1 6.09 to 1 5.59 to 1

8.3 The ‘average salary’ is calculated as follows:

 Median – where the full time equivalent salaries of every employee are 
listed in order of value, and the value of the employee in the middle is 
used. In this case, in Jan 2015 the council had 1330 employees covered 
by this pay policy. When all of these salaries are listed in order, the total 
salary package of the 665th employee is £27,913.

 Mean - where the full time equivalent salaries of every employee are 
added together, and then divided by the total number of employees (in 
this case 1330). It should be noted that adding the salaries together is not 
the same as calculating the total pay bill. This is because full time 
equivalent salaries are used for these figures, but in the council a 
significant number of staff have part time contracts.

8.4 A graph showing pay dispersal across the council as at January 2015 is 
included at Appendix B. This is likely to fluctuate as the shape of the council 
changes, particularly if further services are transferred into, or out of the 
council’s control.  During the year the workforce has reduced to ensure that 
the council manages its financial reductions.  

8.5 The ratios comparing the Chief Executive's pay to average and lowest 
salaries has decreased. The cause is the changing structure of the 
organisation and the increase to pay of those covered by the national 
conditions.  As there has been no change or increase to the Chief Executive's 
salary this has resulted in a reduced ratio. 

9. Review of the Pay Policy Statement

9.1 This policy will be kept under review in the light of external best practice and 
legislation, internal data on recruitment and retention, and external pay data. 
Any changes will be discussed with all stakeholders including recognised 
trade unions before being presented to council for approval. Council will 
approve its Pay Policy Statement at least on an annual basis, normally at the 
council meeting when the council’s budget is considered. 

75



V2 100215

9.2 The transfer of further staff into or out of the council may have an impact on 
salary differentials in the future.  

10. Notes

10.1 This pay policy statement is not intended to be a statement of terms and 
conditions for a chief officer’s employment contract;

10.2 Nothing in this pay policy statement is intended to revoke other council 
policies related to pay, or terms and conditions of employment;

10.3 This pay policy statement has been prepared having regard to the guidance 
given by the Secretary of State in relation to sections 38 to 43 of the Localism 
Act 2011.

76



V2 100215

APPENDIX A 

ROLE OFFICER IN POST

Chief Executive (Head of Paid Service) Gillian Beasley
Director of Governance (Solicitor to the Council) 
(Monitoring Officer) 

Kim Sawyer

Corporate Director of Resources (s151 officer) John Harrison

Statutory Chief Officers:
Corporate Director: People & Communities (Director 
of Adults Services and Children’s Services)
Director of Public Health

Wendi Ogle-Welbourn

Dr. Liz Robin (seconded from 
Cambridgeshire CC)

Non-statutory Chief Officers:
Corporate Director of Growth and Regeneration Simon Machen

Deputy Chief Officers (reports directly to Statutory 
Chief Officer):

Assistant Director: Legal & Democratic Services

Head of Performance Management
Head of HR
Service Director City Services & Communications

Service Director: Financial Services
Assistant Director: Digital Peterborough
Senior Project & Programme Manager

Service Director Education, Corporate Property and 
Children’s Resources
Service Director: Adults Services & Health

Service Director: Children’s

Head of Business Management
Consultant in Public Health

Vacant

Elliott Smith
Mandy Pullen (Acting)
Annette Joyce

Steven Pilsworth
Richard Godfrey
Andy Cox

Jonathan Lewis

Adrian Chapman

Lou Williams

Oliver Hayward
Katherine Hartley
Anne McConville (Interim)

Deputy Chief Officers (reports directly to non-
statutory Chief Officer):
Head of Development & Construction
Head of Resilience 
Head of Sustainable Growth Strategy 
Head of Peterborough Highway services

Nick Harding
Kevin Dawson
Richard Kay
Andy Tatt

77



V2 100215

29

165

279

331

176

112 121

46
31

14 7 1 4 1 2 3 1 1 3 1 1 1

10
-

15K

15
-

20K

20
-

25K

25
-

30K

30
-

35K

35
-

40K

40
-

45K

45
-

50K

50
-

55K

55
-

60K

60
-

65K

65
-

70K

70
-

75K

80
-

85K

85
-

90K

90
-

95K

95
-

100K

100
-

105K

115
-

120K

125
-

130K

140
-

145K

170
-

175K

0

50

100

150

200

250

300

350

Distribution of salaries across the Council [non schools]
at 1st February 2015

Salary Band in £5,000 intervals

N
um

be
r o

f E
m

pl
oy

ee
s

APPENDIX B: DISTRIBUTION OF SALARIES ACROSS THE COUNCIL 
C Council 

78


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the meeting held on 28 January 2015
	4 Mayor's Announcements
	9 Executive and Committee Recommendations to Council
	9 (a) Cabinet Recommendation - Peterborough Culture Strategy 2015-2020
	9a. Appendix 1 - Peterborough Culture Strategy 2015-2020

	10 Questions on the Executive Decisions made since the last meeting
	12 Motions on Notice
	13 (a) Peterborough City Council Pay Policy Statement for 2015/16
	13a. Appendix 1 - Pay Policy Statement 2015-16




